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Venue/

Organizer Program

‘ Participants ‘

Shrawan 21, Executive Member Virtual studv visit to
1 2078 of Board, CEO and Virtual, ACCU Janapnes Cerit Union
August 5,2021 : Department Head P
Bhadra 9-11, . .
2 2078, Ms.Rita Subed VirtuaLACCU  BDS Training, ACCU 2

Aug 25-27,2021

Ms. Rejina Poudel

International Online
Program on "Project

Bhadra 9-11, New Dethi, Approach to Cooperative
3 2078, Mr. Umesh Koirala Virtual Development : Sharing
Aug 25-27, Mr. Rabindra Shrestha | CICTAB-NCUI- Experiences 01; NCUI
2021 VAMNICOM . .
Cooperative Education
Field Projects
Bhadra 18, Executive Member of IR @ SEINER
4 2078, Board Virtual ACCU Y ke G 3T
September 5, Mr. Prakash Prasad BRIHH, ERT AlfRaT
2021 Pokharel
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Bhadra 25

Mr. Paritosh Paudyal

ACCU 40th Annual

5 September 10, | Mr. Prakash Prasad Virtual, ACCU General Meetin 2
2021 Pokharel g-
Manasir 14-17 Mr.Janak Khatri CICTAB: Exposure 3 From
g Mr. Umesh Koirala ._ i Visit Programme on NEFSCUN
6 Nov 30, Dec . Kohalpur, India g .
1-3 2021 Mr. Samit Kumar Cooperative Business 5 from
’ Khadka Model Saccos
Mangsir 20- 2021 Asian CU Leaders
22,27-28 . . Virtual,Accu-  Program by National
/ Dec Mr. Shital Thapaliya NACUFOK Credit Union Federation !
6-8,13,14,2021 of Korea (NACUFOK)
Mangsir 29 Mr. Prakash Prasad ) Access Branding
8 Dec152021  Pokharel ACCUVirtual - o nical Review Meeting !
International programme
Poush 11-15 Ms. Namuna Sapkota on Application of IT
9 o P India, CICTAB | for Development of 2
Dec 26-30,021  Mr. Arjun Tamu . .
Agricultural Cooperatives &
Rural Financing Institutions
International programme
Poush 12-15 Mrs. Bidhya Koirala . on "Women Empowerment
10 Dec 27-30,021 : Ms. Rita Subedi India, CICTAB through Income 2
Generating Activities"
Faculty Development
Poush 19-22 . . . Programme on Research
11 Jan 3-6,022 Mr. Navin Raj Dahal India, CICTAB Methodology and Data 1
Analysis
Faculty Development
Mr. Ganesh Prasad . . Programme on Research
12 Poush19-22 | 4y atsina Ontine, India Methodology and Data
Analysis
Poush 27 Mr. Prakash Prasad . CEO Advisiory Committee
B3 jan11,022 Pokharel ACCU Virwal e eting !
Mr. Paritosh Paudyal Virtual Study Visit
Falaun 20 Mr. Prakash Prasad Program featuring
14 Ma?ch 4022 Pokharel ACCU,Virtual : Chandragiri Saccos by 3
’ Mr. Radheshyam Accu in cordination with
Shrestha NEFSCUN
i Faculty Development on
15 Falgun 25-27 Mr. Navin Raj Dahal India,CICTAB  "Research Methodology 1
March 9-11,022 -
and Data analysis
Mr. Rudra Prasad
Chaitra 1 Pandit, Registrar Chairperson/CEOs and
16 March 15.022 Mr. Paritosh Paudyal ACCU,Virtual : Regulators Roundtable 3
’ Mr. Prakash Prasad Meeting
Pokharel
Chaitra 13-15 . .
17 March 27-29, Mr. Prakash Prasad India, CICTAB CICTAB CgunC|l Meeting 1
Pokharel Delhi, India
022
Jestha 22-27 . . 31st Development
18 June 5-10,022 Mr. Sandip Sapkota ACCU, Virtual Educator Workshop 2022 !
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Co-operatives
Unions Limited (NEFSCUN)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Quualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Co-operatives Unions Limited
(NEFSCUN) (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July
16, 2022), the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the organization as at 32 Ashad, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN); which was effective from 16 July 2016 (1 Shrawan 2073)

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As per the provisions of the Bonus Act, 2030; organization is required to provide for 10% of its profits before
bonus and tax towards employee bonus which amounts to Rs. 53,252,680. However, organization has provided for
only 4.33% of its profits for employee bonus amounting to Rs. 23,074,376. Hence, the profits of the organization
have been overstated by Rs. 30,178,304 and the liabilities have been understated by the same amount.

As per the provisions of the Co-operative Rules, 2075; amount allocated to Patronage Refund Reserve needs to be
distributed to the members by the end of the next financial year in accordance with the methodology prescribed
in the rules; and any amount that remains undistributed needs to be transferred to General Reserve Fund. Of Rs.
74,754,918 allocated to the Patronage Refund Reserve out of the profits of FY 2077-78; only Rs. 58,256,647 has
been distributed in accordance with the rules and only Rs. 10,506 has been transferred to General Reserve Fund;
the balance amount of Rs. 16,487,765 has been transferred to Share Dividend Fund and has been utilized to
distribute dividends to the members.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our Report. We are independent of the Organization in accordance with the /ICAN 'S Handbook of Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We invite attention to Note 4.4- “Loans and advances to member co-operatives” of the financial statements where
the organization has adopted an alternative method for assessment of impairment of loans. In line with conservative
practice suggested as per carve-outs issued by ICAN; individual and collective impairment loss on loans amount
calculated as per NFRS requirements is to be compared with the impairment provision required under the co-
operative guidelines and the higher of the amount derived from these measures is to be taken as impairment loss
for loans. However, due to lack of required information for such statistical analysis; the organization has made a
provision for impairment as per the existing co-operative guidelines. The management of the organization believes
that the provision made sufficiently covers the impairment that would have been calculated as per NFRS. Our
opinion is not qualified in this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
applicable financial reporting framework and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the
Organization’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Organization to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on the legal and other regulatory requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with reporting responsibilities under the
Co-operatives Act, 2074; the Co-operative Rules, 2075 and other regulatory requirements:

"BP Associates
GHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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We have obtained replies to the queries as per the demand were provided,

We found the statement of financial position, off-balance sheet transactions, statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity and other financial statements
as well have been prepared in such format and in accordance with such procedures as prescribed in Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and that
they matched with the accounts, records, books and ledgers maintained by the Organization,

We found the accounts, records, books and ledgers have been maintained accurately in accordance with
prevailing laws except the items included in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph,

Our observations on financial and other matters have been communicated to the management through a
preliminary report, the Management Letter. There are no significant observations apart from the observations
mentioned in the Management Letter.

We did not come across, based on our audit, cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board
of directors or any director or any office bearer of the insurance has acted contrary to the provisions of law
or caused loss or damage to the insurance or committed any misappropriation of the funds of insurance and
materially complied with the provisions of the Co-operatives Act, 2074 as well.

BP Associates
GHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CA Prabin Baral

Proprietor

UDIN: 221122CA01037xPZqU

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Date: 2079/06/31

Ok
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Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperative Unions Ltd. (NEFSCUN)

Statement of Financial Position

As on 32" Ashadh, 2079
Amount in NPR

Restated Restated

Particulars Note As on 32nd Ashadh, As at 31st Ashadh, As on 1st
2079 2078 Shrawan,2077
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 4,417,583,400 4,196,456,327 7,178,044,032
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.2 1,780,000,000 8,027,400,000 2,900,000,000
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.3 - - -
Loans and Advances to Member
Co-operatives 44 15,573,240,943 11,391,893,113 7,250,439,571
Loans and Advances to Staff 4.5 90,184,329 64,802,987 44,591,358
Investment Securities 4.6 2,311,000 1,311,000 1,311,000
Current Tax Assets 4.7 184,226,771 171,692,603 103,253,243
Investment Property 4.8 24,861,447 24,861,447 24,861,447
Property,PlantandEquipment 4.9 253,948,451 209,497,931 198,350,910
Right of Use Assets 4.10 56,182,107 - -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.11 18,139,762 1,396,869 986,439
Other Assets 4.13 77,619,409 53,839,299 24,657,377
Total Assets 22,478,297,619 24,143,151,576 17,726,495,377
Particulars Note As on 32nd Ashadh, As at 31st Ashadh As on 1st Shrawan
2079 2078 2077

Liabilities
Deposits from Member Co-operatives 4.14 18,338,867,893 21,795,201,047 16,174,029,278
Borrowings 4.15 1,260,900,000 108,900,000 156,550,000
Provision for Employee Benefits 4.16 59,220,100 42,457,400 48,803,200
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.12 6,584,688 5,031,262 3,958,714
Deferred Grant Income 4.17 475,087 527,874 586,527
Lease Liabilities 4.10 58,974,747 - -
Grant Liabilities 4.18 714,505 714,505 4,441,244
Other Liabilities 4.19 234,111,195 132,930,305 89,048,928
Total Liabilities 19,959,848,215 22,085,762,393 16,477,417,891
Equity
Share Capital 421 1,670,484,500 1,458,700,000 961,531,000
General Reserve Fund 4.22 347,014,062 232,494,408 132,712,663
Patronage Refund Reserve 81,537,172 74,754,918 28,514,551
Other Statutory Reserves 423 317,041,819 232,360,905 88,043,269
Revaluation Reserve 86,139,483 61,444,036 61,444,037
Retained Earnings - (15,900,503) (25,209,265)
Other Reserves and Funds 4.24 16,232,368 13,535,419 2,041,232
Total Equity 2,518,449,404 2,057,389,183 1,249,077,486
Total Liabilities and Equity 22,478,297,619 24,143,151,576 17,726,495,377

As per our report of even date

Deepak Paneru Paritosh Paudyal
Treasurer Chairperson
Chartered Agcountant
BP Associates
Place: NEFSCUN's Head Office, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperative Unions Ltd. (NEFSCUN)

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079

Amount in NPR
Restated

Particulars Note FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Interest Income 4.27 1,997,828.,684 1,603,635,990
Interest Expense 4.28 (1,239,020,876) (979,131,985)
Net Interest Income 758,807,808 624,504,005
Sales and Other Operating Income 4.29 124,140,456 91,580,383
Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses 4.30 (43,777,670) (25,469,984)
Net Sales and Other Operating Income 80,362,786 66,110,399
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 839,170,593 690,614,404
Net Trading Income 431 - -
Other Incomes 4.32 5,657,514 4,326,023
Total Operating Income 844,828,107 694,940,427
Impairment (Charge)/ Reversal for Loans and Other Losses 4.33 (65,029,244) (67,410,424)
Net Operating Income 779,798,863 627,530,003
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 (190,018,902) (125,241,013)
Other Administrative and Operating Expenses 4.35 (57,377,968) (49,394,173)
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 4.36 (22,949,572) (6,111,279)
Operating Profit 509,452,421 446,783,538
Non Operating Income 4.37 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -
Profit Before Income Tax 509,452,421 446,783,538
Income Tax Expense 4.39

Current Tax Expense

(52,618,048)

(45,468,036)

Deferred Tax 1,043,858 (290,813)
Profit for the Year 457,878,230 401,024,689
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 27.41 27.49
Diluted Earnings per Share 27.41 27.49

As per our report of even date

Deepak Paneru Paritosh Paudyal
Treasurer Chairperson

Chart&ed.Acco ntant
BP Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Date: 31 Ashwin, 20795F7Oct, 2022)
Place: NEFSCUN's Head Office, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperative Unions Ltd. (NEFSCUN)

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079

Particulars

Amount in NPR

FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Profit for the year

457,878,230 401,024,689

Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on equity instruments measured at FVTOCI
Gains/(losses) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

27,439,384 -
(1,466,548) 7,817,354

Income tax relating to above items

(2,597,284) (781,735)

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

23,375,552 7,035,619

b) Items that are or may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange difference on translation of financial assets of foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax

23,375,552 7,035,619

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

481,253,782 408,060,307

a ash Prasad Pokharel
74

*" ief Executive Officer
Date: 31 Ashwin, 2079 (17 Oct, 2022)
Place: NEFSCUN's Head Office, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu

........ B S

Deepak Paneru
Treasurer

www.nefscun.org.np

As per our report of even date

Paritosh Paudyal
Chairperson Kssociates

Chartered Accountant
BP Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperative Unions Ltd. (NEFSCUN)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079

Particulars

FY 2078/79

Amount in NPR

Restated
FY 2077/78

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

1,988,897,392

1,602,420,179

Fee and other operating income received 124,140,456 91,580,383
Interest Paid (1,239,020,876) (979,131,985)
Other Direct Expenses Paid (43,777,670) (25,469,984)
Cash Payment to Employees (164,324,910) (108,729,050)
Other Administrative and Operating Expenses Paid (57,377,968) (49,394,173)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 608,536,424 531,275,370
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions 6,247,400,000 (5,127,400,000)
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives (4,246,377,075) (4,208,863,965)
Loans and Advances to Staff (25,381,342) (32,715,253)
Other Assets (36,644,678) (16,678,298)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities

Deposit from member co-operatives

(3,456,333,153)

5,621,171,769

Borrowings 1,152,000,000 (47,650,000)
Other Liabilities 99,661,555 26,271,387
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid 342,861,731 (3,254,588,991)
Income Tax Paid (65,152,217) (113,907,396)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 277,709,514 (3,368,496,387)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (23,946,854) (16,979,412)
Purchase of investment securities (1,000,000) -
Purchase of Intangible Assets (17,099,539) (689,319)
Dividend and patronage refund received 5,657,514 4,326,023
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (36,388,880) (13,342,708)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from Issue of Shares 211,784,500 497,169,000
Dividends Paid (161,324,199) (73,648,256)
Patronage refund payment (58,256,647) (18,510,286)
Other Receipts/Payments (12,397,217) (4,759,068)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (20,193,562) 400,251,390
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 221,127,073 (2,981,587,705)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (opening)
Effect of Exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents held

4,196,456,327

7,178,044,032

Cash and Cash Equivalents (closing)

4,417,583,400

4,196,456,327

Deepak Paneru

Account Officer Chief Executive Officer Treasurer

Date: 31 Ashwin, 2079 (17 Oct, 2022)
Place: NEFSCUN's Head Office, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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As per our report of even date

Paritosh Paudyal
Chairperson

artered Accountant
ssociqates
GHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Co-operative Unions Ltd. (NEFSCUN)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079

1. Reporting Entity

Nepal Federation of Savings and Credit Cooperative Unions (NEFSCUN) is a member based national federation
of savings & credit cooperative societies (SACCOS) & their district unions (DUs). The federation is registered
under the Co-operatives Act, 2074. It received registration no. 329/050/51 (Date: 2050/05/29) from the cooperatives
department under the Ministry of Land Management, Cooperative and Poverty Alleviation and has been registered
with the Inland Revenue Department with Permanent Account Number (PAN) 303403054. NEFSCUN has been,
since the last three decades, committed to the development, promotion & strengthening of its member organizations
through supporting SACCOS & DU in their aim to contribute to the uplifting of financial, social, cultural aspiration
of individual members from the communities. NEFSCUN follows the credit union principles propounded by World
Council of Credit Union (WOCCU) in 1984. Currently, NEFSCUN has Central Office in New Baneshwor and 25
field offices in Sunsari, Chitwan, Nepalgunj, Dolakha, Lamjung, Sarlahi, Lalitpur, Chabahil, Kanchanpur, Rupendehi,
Jhapa, Kaski, Kalanki, Dadeldhura, Dang, Parsa, Banepa, Surkhet, Newroad, Dhadingbesi, Janakpur, Makawanpur,
Bhaktpur, Gongabu and Manthali respectively. Similarly, it has extended 13 service offices on Biratnagar, Letang,
Bhumabhi, Tandi, Khairenitar , Birtamod, Dhangadi, Suryabinayak, Sidhuli, Lahan, Chapagau, Pepsicola and Myagdi
respectively.

NEFSCUN has completed 35 years advocating solidarity in SACCOS movement and facilitating its branded-affiliated
SACCOS and district unions on ACCESS and PROBATION programmes. In this SACCOS movement, around 35
lakh 28 thousand individuals involved from 4464 of its affiliated members have participated; which also covers 3
province unions, 65 districts unions and 4396 primary cooperatives from 76 districts of Nepal. Mustang is the only
district that doesn’t have NEFSCUN participation. NEFSCUN has been conducting institutional saving and credit
transaction regularly since its establishment.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1  Statement of Compliance

The separate financial statements of the Federation, have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal. Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared since the federation does not have any investments
in entities classified as associate, subsidiary or a joint arrangement.

These financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079 are the first financial statements of the federation
prepared in accordance with NFRS. Reconciliations and description of the effect of the transition to NFRS from
previous GAAP is given in Note 5.8 of this financial statement.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s
classification / disclosures.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The federation follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1 Shrawan and ending
on last day of Ashadh.

These financial statements consist three statements of financial position as at 32™ Ashadh 2079, 31 Ashadh
2078 and 1* Shrawan 2077 as required by NFRS 1-First-Time Adoption of NFRS. The federation has also
presented two statements of profit or loss and statements of other comprehensive income, two statements of
changes in equity and two statements of cash flows for the year ended as of 32" Ashadh 2079 and 31* Ashadh
2078 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2074 (First Amendment).

% % w%/‘d%

Prasad Pokharel Deepak Paneru Paritosh Paudyal

A Al
/ Executive Officer Treasurer Chairperson B.BALSA A COOUNTANTS
Chartered Accountant
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23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30" Ashwin 2079 and
recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 31% Annual General Meeting.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Federation operates. The financial information presented has been rounded off to
nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thatare believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods except where deviations have been explicitly
mandated by the applicable accounting standards presented in the financial statements, including the preparation
of the opening NFRS compliant Statement of Financial Position as at 1 Shrawan, 2077 being the date of
transition to NFRS.

New Standards issued but not yet effective

NFRS-9, Financial Instrument replaces the existing standard relating to Financial Instrument which provides
guidelines for expected credit loss model for impairment of the financial assets. This standard is neither issued
nor made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). Thus, the financial assets are
recognized, measured, presented and disclosed using NAS-32 Financial Instrument- Presentation, NAS-39
Financial Instrument-Recognition and Measurements and NFRS-7 Financial Instrument- Disclosure.

New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

e [FRS-9 has been internationally made applicable by International Accounting Standard Board from 1st
January 2018 but the same has not beenadopted by the ICAN. Thus, this standard was not considered in
the financial statement.

e  Other amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB are not adopted as those are
not notified by ICAN.

Discounting

The non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by the
NFRS.

Adoption of New and Revised Standard on Lease

In the current year, the Federation has applied NFRS 16 Leases (as issued by the ASB) that is effective for annual
periods that begin on or after 1 Shrawan 2078.

NFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes
to lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance lease and requiring the recognition
of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets when such recognition exemptions are adopted. Details of these new requirements are described in
Note 3.15. The impact of the adoption of NFRS 16 on the financial statements is described below.
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The date of initial application of NFRS 16 for the Federation is 1 Shrawan 2078.

The Federation has applied NFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach which:

= Requires the Federation to recognise the effect of initially applying NFRS 16 by considering the date of initial
application as the date of commencement of lease.

= Does not permit restatement of comparatives, which continue to be presented under NAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Impact of New Definition of a Lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to NFRS 16 not to reassess whether a
contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with NAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will
continue to be applied to those leases entered or changed before 1 Shrawan 2077.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. NFRS 16 determines whether a contract
contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. This is in contrast to the focus on ‘risks and rewards’ in NAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Federation applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in NFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 Shrawan 2078. In preparation for the first-time application of NFRS 16, the Federation
has carried out an implementation project. The project has shown that the new definition in NFRS 16 will not
significantly change the scope of contracts that meet the definition of a lease for the Federation.

Former operating leases

NFRS 16 changes how the Federation accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under NAS 17,
which were off balance sheet.

Applying NFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the Federation:

= Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position, initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments, with the right-of-use asset adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments in accordance with NFRS 16:C8(b)(ii)

= Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss;

= Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and
interest (presented within financing activities) in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Under NFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with NAS 36.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, the Federation has opted to
recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by NFRS 16. This expense is presented within ‘Note
4.35- Other administrative and operating expenses’ in the statement of profit or loss.

The Federation has used the following practical expedients when applying the modified retrospective approach to
leases previously classified as operating leases applying NAS 17.

= The Federation has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

= The Federation has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for which the lease
term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

=  The Federation has excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

= The Federation has used hindsight when determining the lease term when the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Federation have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Basis of Measurement
Retirement Benefit Obligations Present value of defined benefit obligations less the fair value
of the plan assets
Other Long Term Employee Benefits Present value of defined benefit obligations less the
Obligations fair value of the plan assets

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 3 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are measured
at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except ifthey are related
to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The federation doesn’t have any interest in other entities requiring consolidation as per NFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

3.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Federation recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Allfinancial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costsin relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are charged
to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

Classification and Measurement

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

a. Measured at amortized cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows thatare solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization
of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through OCI:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest,
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fairvalue movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Equity Instrument which are held as long-term strategic investments and not for trading for which the
Federation makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument through OCI
are measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income.
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C.  Measured at fair value through profit or loss:
The Federation classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or designated at fair value throughprofit or loss.
Any other financial asset not classified as either Financial Assets at amortized cost or Financial Assets at
FVTOCI, is classified as Financial Assets at FVTPL.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

b.  Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost usingeffective interest method.

De-recognition

The Federation derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers thecontractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Determination of Fair Value
The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transactionbetween market participants at the measurement date.

The Federation follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy as described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of
quoted for similar instrumentin active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument
in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Impairment

The Federation reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether
an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is
extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the
impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results
may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based
on Management’s best estimateof the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgementsabout the number of factors including a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on
its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is established for:

e  groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are
not considered individually significant; and
e groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for greater
losses than that suggested by the historical trends.
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3.4 Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized
on trade date, when the Federation enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally
derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss.
Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net trading income’. However, the
Federation does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.5 Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading aswell as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequentlyre-measured to fair value at each reporting date.
However, the Federation does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2079.

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, ifany. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset.

Depreciation: The Federation depreciates property, plant and equipment following Written Down Value method
applying the Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058. The rates used for depreciation of assets for
the current and comparative period of significant items ofproperty, plant and equipment are as follows:

S. No. | Particulars Depreciation Rates
1 Buildings 5%
2 Office Equipments, Furniture and Computers 10%
3 Vehicles 20%
4 Other Assets 10%
5 Safe Vaults 2.5%

The federation adopts revaluation model for its land. Fair values are generally determined based on the report
of a professional valuator every two years. The federation adopts cost model for other classes of property, plant
and equipment. The items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and anyaccumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets having acquisition
cost upto NPR. 10,000 are written down as an expense for the period in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Goodwill/Intangible Assets

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently,if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual
or other legal rights, and their fair value can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost less impairment / amortization over their estimateduseful life.

Federation currently has software as intangible assets and is amortized at 25% on diminishing balance method.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment
and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by the Federation as
non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and subsequently measured using fair value model.

Income Tax

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directlyin equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Current tax is the amountsexpected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year,
using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amountsattributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences anddeferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized
or the liabilities settled, basedon tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arisein the same tax reporting group and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits:

Deposits by members are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs for those financial liabilities
not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring the
deposits.

Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortized cost using effectiveinterest method except where the federation designates the liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. However, the Federation does not have such debt securities as on Ashadh end 2079.

Subordinate Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued
and other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.
During the reporting period the Federation did not haveany such liabilities.

Provisions, Other Liabilities Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Federation has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation
at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate and
arereversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources.
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The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probablywill not require an outflow of resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Federation from
a contract are lower thanthe unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The Federation does
not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as at Ashadh end 2079.

3.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Federation and the
consideration can be reliablymeasured. The following specific recognition criteria shall also be met for revenue
recognition:

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available-
for-sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of effective interest rate
includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest only if considered
necessary. Such a charges are not amortizedover the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized
closely approximates the income that would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized
directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

e Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate
method, except for impaired loans andadvances. These financial assets include investment in government
securities, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter-bank lending, etc.

e  As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Federation has not included the fees paid or received in loans
and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have
recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

e As per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Federation has applied the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial assetunless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

e Interest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest rate.

e Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the
period of discounting on accrual basisusing effective interest rate.

e Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations and are
presented together with all otherchanges in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

e Interest income accrued but not received from Performing loans and advances till date has been recognized
in the current year interest income.

Fee and Commission Income.

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Dividend Income.

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to receive the dividend is
established.
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3.13

3.14

Net Trading Income.

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend
from financial assets ‘Held forTrading’. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the amount
net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profitand loss.

Grant Income

Grants related to income are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period in
which the federation recognizes the expense for the related cost which the grants intend to compensate. Grants
related to assets are recognized as deferred grant income. The deferred grant income is amortized to the statement
of profit or loss over the useful life of the related asset in the ratio of depreciation charged on the related asset
over the useful life.

Interest Expenses

Interest expense on all financial liabilities measured at amortize cost including deposits is recognized in statement of
profit or loss using effective interest rate method. The Federation uses ASB carve- outs as mentioned above and
treats coupon rate as effective interest rate.

Interest expense on all financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized as and
when incurred.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits

The Federation’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses as provided
under prevailing laws and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.

Short-term paid leaves

Federation provides 12 days of casual and ritual leave, 7 days of force leave to employees every year. These
leaves are non-accumulating and non-vesting. In addition, the federation provides 60 days of maternal leave, 15
days of paternal leave and mourning leave as per its bylaws.

Post-Employment employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans

Post-Employment benefits plan under which the federation pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity and
retains no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are categorized under defined contribution
plans. The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services
are rendered by employees.

Social Security Fund Contribution

Social security fund is the defined contribution plan opted by the federation. In compliance with The Labor Act, 2074,
the federation contributes 20% of the basic salary and grade amount of all the employees to the Fund and 11% is
deducted from employees’ pay; totaling 31%. The social security fund is a government-operated fund. The Federation
has no further obligations underthese plans beyond its obligation for periodic contributions.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Federation’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return fortheir service in current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Federation's obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefit is expected to be paid. The defined benefit obligation is recognized on the basis of the report of
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qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Federation recognizes all actuarial gains and losses
arising from defined benefit plans immediately in OCI and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in
employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the group, the recognized assets are limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value
of economic benefits consideration is givento any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets
(excluding interest income) andthe effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized immediately
in OCI. The Federation determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the definedbenefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes in thenet defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net interest expenses and other
expensesrelated to defined benefit plans are recognized as personal expenses in Statement of profit and Loss.

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits other than those classified as either short-term, post-
retirement or termination benefits. The Federation’s net obligation in respect of such benefits is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefits that have accrued to the employees in return
for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any
unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Federation's
obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefit is expected to bepaid. The obligation is
recognized on the basis of the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Federation
recognizes all expenses including actuarial gain/loss on re-measurement of other long-term employee benefits
in the statement of profit or loss.

3.15 Leases

The Group has applied NFRS 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach and therefore comparative information has
not been restated and is presented under NAS 17. The details of accounting policies under both NAS 17 and NFRS
16 are presented separately below.

Policies applicable from 1 Shrawan 2078.

The Federation assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Federation
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it
is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases,
the Federation recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Federation uses
its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

=  Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

=  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

= The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
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= The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

= Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Federation remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

. The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

. The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

. A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case

the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at
or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Federation incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
a provision is recognised and measured under NAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

3.16  Share Capital and Reserves
Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash,
other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Puttable instruments that meet the
criteria specified by para 16A and 16B of NAS 32 Financial Instruments-Presentation are also calssified as
equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of
taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

The shares issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through
equity and disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

Statutory Reserves

The reserve includes reserves required to be maintained by law.

General Reserve Fund

As per the provisions of the Co-operatives Act, 2074 and the Co-operative Rules, 2075; 25% of net profit of a
financial year is transferred to the general reserve fund. Profits on sale of fixed assets and amortized deferred income
on grants related to assets are also transferred to this fund.

Patronage Fund

As per the provisions of the Co-operatives Act, 2074 and the Co-operative Rules, 2075; 25% of net profits for the year
remaining after allocation to the general reserve fund has been transferred to the patronage fund.
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Co-operative Promotion Fund

As per the provisions of the Co-operatives Act, 2074 and the Co-operative Rules, 2075; 0.5% of net profits for
the year remaining after allocation to the general reserve fund has been transferred to the Ministry Of Land And
Management, Co-operatives and Poverty Alleviation as per the notice of co-operative promotion fund secretariat. The
fund is managed by Ministry of Land Management, Co-operatives and Poverty Alleviation.

Other Funds

As per the provisions of the Co-operatives Act, 2074 and the Co-operative Rules, 2075; the balance of profits for the
year remaining after allocation to the general reserve fund, patronage fund and the Co-operatives promotion fund has
been allocated as follows pursuant to the decision by the Board of Directors in accordance with the laws, regulations
and the bylaws of the organization:

Particulars Allocation (%)
Share Dividend Fund 70%
Loss Equaliation Fund 5%
Member Education Fund 5%
Co-operatives Development Fund 5%
Community Development Fund 5%
Stabilization Fund 5%
Other Risks Management Fund 4%
Staff Welfare Fund 1%
TOTAL 100%

3.17 Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS

Federation presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the federation by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both
the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinaryshares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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4. Notes to the Financial Statements

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with
banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets with
original maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to and insignificant risk of
changes in their fair values and are used by the federation in the management of its short-term commitments.
Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFIs and other short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents are presented hereunder:

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 Shrawan 2077
Cash in Hand - - -
Balance with banks (available on demand) 3,805,583,400 4,026,456,327 3,976,044,032
Fixed deposit with banks (original maturity upto 3

months) 612,000,000 170,000,000 3,202,000,000
Other - - -
Total 4,417,583,400 4,196,456,327 7,178,044,032

4.2 Placements with Financial Instutions

Fixed Deposit placement with financial institutions are financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. They
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The
amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The details
of such financial assets are as follows:

. As on 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1stShrawan
Particulars

2079 2078 2077
Fixed Deposit Placements with Banks and Financial
Institutions 1,780,000,000 8,027,400,000 2,900,000,000
Less: Allowances for Impairment - - R
Total 1,780,000,000 8,027,400,000 2,900,000,000

4.3 Derivative Financial Instruments

As on 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1stShrawan
Particulars 2079 2078 2077

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap - - R

Forward Exchange Contracts - - -

Others - - _
Held for Risk Management -

Interest Rate Swap - - R

Forward Exchange Contracts. - - -

Others _ _ ~

Total - - -
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4.4 Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives

The federation provides various loans and advance facilities to its member co-operatives. These assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less
impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The Federation has adopted an alternative method for assessment of impairment of loans. Accordingly, individual and
collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is to be compared with the impairment provision required under
co-operative guidelines, higher of the amount derived from these measures is to be taken as impairment loss for loans and
receivables. However, due to lack of required information for such statistical analysis; the federation has made provision for
impairment as per the existing co-operative guidelines. Management believes that the provision made sufficiently covers the
impairment that would have been calculated as per NFRS.

The existing co-operative guidelines require impairment to be provided for using the following ageing matrix:

Particulars Provision for Impairment
Good loans (not overdue) 1%

Doubtful loans (overdue for not more than 12 months) 35%
Delinquent loans (overdue for more than 12 months) 100%

The details of loans and advances to member co-operatives has been presented herewith:

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 Shrawan 2077

Inter-lending Loan 75,423,689 187,150,477 321,569,960
NYC Loan 90,710,745 134,913,452 158,614,828
FD Loan 599,050,000 91,800,000 31,570,000
RRP Loan 895,368 895,368 1,728,703
Other Loan (Software) 925,000 4,244 315 13,091,310
Lions ME Loan - - 2,052,781
Whole Sale Loan 15,036,615,906 11,146,788,914 6,827,743,877
NYC Certificate Collateral Loan 5,682,014 6,908,454 7,465,556
Total 15,809,302,723 11,572,700,980 7,363,837,015
Interest Receivable 9,775,333 - -
Gross Loans and Advances 15,819,078,056 11,572,700,980 7,363,837,015
Less: Allowances for Impairment (245,837,113) (180,807,868) (113,397,444)
Total 15,573,240,943 11,391,893,113 7,250,439,571

Loans are generally secured against various collaterals including land and building, personal and group guarantee of
directors of the respective co-operatives, fixed deposits held by the federation and others.

4.4.1 Allowances for Impairment

As on 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh

As at 1st

Particulars 2079 2078 Shrawan 2077
Balance at Shrawan 01 180,807,868 113,397,444 85,544,827
Impairment Losss for the year: - - -
Charge for the year 95,968,625 90,266,457 39,257,577
Recoveries/Reversal (30,939,381) (22,856,033) (11,404,960)
Amount Written Off - - -
Balance at Ashadh End 245,837,112 180,807,868 113,397,444

o Sk
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4.4.2 Allowances for Impairment by Loan Ageing

As on 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh As at 1stShrawan

Particulars 2079 2078 2077

Loan Category by Ageing

Good loans (not delinquent) 15,677,906,889 11,579,837,102 7,308,507,720
Doubtful loans (delinquent for not more than 12 months) 65,226,692 27,669,799 23,217,405
Bad loans (delinquent for more than 12 months) 66,169,140 55,322,067 32,186,275
Total 15,809,302,722 11,662,828,968 7,363,911,400
Impairment Allowances

Good loans (not delinquent) @ 1% 156,779,069 115,801,371 73,085,077
Doubtful loans (delinquent for not more than 12 months)

@ 35% 22,829,342 9,684,430 8,126,092
Bad loans (delinquent for more than 12 months) @

100% 66,169,140 55,322,067 32,186,275
Allowance for Impairment 245,777,552 180,807,868 113,397,444

4.5 Loans and Advances to Staff

The federation provides various loan facilities to its employees as per its by-laws. These loans are provided at concessional
rates of interest as compared to market rates. These loans are initially measured at fair values by discounting contractual
cash flows at market rate of interest. The difference between the gross amount disbursed and the fair value is recognized as
prepaid expense and is amortized to profit or loss over the loan tenure. The amortization of such expenses is presented under
"Personnel expenses (Note 4.34)". The unamortized portion of such prepaid expenses is presented under "Other assets (Note
4.13)".

The federation provides vehicle loan and property loan to its staff. Vehicle loans are secured against the respective vehicles and
property loans are secured against the respective properties. The loans are repayable on EMI (Equated monthly instalment)
basis and deucted against salary payable to staff each month. None of the loans are impaired as per the assessment of
management. The details of loans are presented hereunder:

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh As at 1st
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 Shrawan 2077
Loans to staff (gross outstanding) 116,424,858 90,127,987 57,412,734
Fair Value adjustment (related to concessional rate of
interest) (26,240,529) (25,325,000) (12,821,376)
Amortized cost of loans and advances to staff 90,184,329 64,802,988 44,591,358

Less: Impairment Allowances
Collective Impairment - - R

Individual Impairment - - R

Total 90,184,329 64,802,988 44,591,358
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4.7 Current Tax Assets

As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 2077
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 65,152,217 113,128,734 83,147,277
Tax Assets of Prior Periods 171,692,603 103,253,243 37,470,780
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 52,445,064 44,689,374 17,364,814
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods 172,984 - -
Total 184,226,771 171,692,603 103,253,243

4.8 Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or building held for sale. The federation generally provides loans and advances to its
members against collateral of land and/or building. Such properties are put up for sale through auction for recovery of loans
in case of default. Sometimes, the properties may not be so realized; in which case the federation assumes ownership of the
properties according to the prevailing laws. Such properties are generally held for sale and not for use and are classfied as
investment properties.

The federation measures its investment properties using the fair value model. The properties are initially measured at cost
and subsequntly at fair values at each reporting dates, with differences transferred to profit or loss. The cost includes the gross
carrying amount of loan including interest and other charges.

However, the management assesses that the fair value of the properties cannot be determined reliably since the properties are
located in areas that do not witness frequent property transactions, which is evidenced by the fact that the ownership of those
properties had to be assumed by the federation because they could not be realized through auction. As such, since the fair
value of the properties could not be measured reliably and hence, the properties have been measured at cost. The federation
continuously assesses whether the fair value subsequently become measurable reliably .

As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 2077
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01. 24,861,447 24,861,447 24,861,447
Addition/(Disposal) during the year. - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year. - - -
Adjustment/Transfer. - - -
Net Amount 24,861,447 24,861,447 24,861,447

The details of the investment properties have been mentioned hereunder:

Particulars Acquisition date Area Cost

Land at Itahari Sub Metro Politan City, ward No. 3 jha.

(Plot number 767) 2075.03.20 1693.20Sq.m. 8,430,400
Land at Rautaht , Sakhuawa Dhamaura, Ward no. 7 16,431,047
Plot number 662 2076.03.24 1693.2Sq.m.

Plot number 1759 650.19Sq.m

Plot number 1775 592.58Sq.m

Total 24,861,447
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4.10 Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities

Right of Use Assets

Particulars

Building

Total

Cost

Balance as on Asar end 2078
Addition during the Year
Disposal during the year

71,839,314

71,839,314

Balance as on Ashadh end 2079

71,839,314

71,839,314

Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as on Asar end 2078
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment for the year

Disposals

15,657,207

15,657,207

As on Ashadh end 2079

15,657,207

15,657,207

Net Book Value

As on Ashadh end 2078

As on Ashadh end 2079

56,182,107

56,182,107

The federation has taken various assets under lease. The lease contracts relate to building premises taken on lease by the
federation for its head office and branch offices. The federation had total 44 premises on lease during FY 2078-79 with
average lease period of 5.5 years. No lease contract provides a purchase option at the end of the lease term and does not
include purchase option.

The federation applied NFRS 16 Leases during the year using the modified retrospective approach as follows:

(i) Federation recognised lease liabilities at the date of initial application (1 Shrawan 2078) for leases previously classified as an
operating lease applying NAS 17. The lease liabilities have been measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the federation's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application which was assessed at 10%.

(i1) Federation recognised right-of-use assets at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as an operating
lease applying NAS 17. The federation chose to measure all right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately before the date of initial application.

(ii1) Federation classified all lease contracts that had a remaining lease period of upto 12 months as at the date of initial
application as short-term leases and has applied the recognition exemptions related to short-term leases provided by NFRS
16. The lease payments made under those contracts have been recognized as expenses during the year.

As at 32 Ashadh 2079; the federation is not committed to any payment for short-term leases.

The lease contracts include fixed lease payments. There are no payments other than those included in the assessment of lease
liabilities.

Lease Liabilities

Particulars As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077

Total Lease Liabilities 58,974,746 - -

Analysed as:

Current 10,213,334 - -

Non-current 48,761,412 - -
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Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities

Unwinding of

Lease Payments

Particulars Lease Liabilities lease liablities  (undiscounted)

Year 1 10,213,334 5,396,103 15,609,438
Year 2 9,586,902 4,443,465 14,030,367
Year 3 9,064,908 3,494,695 12,559,604
Year 4 7,436,432 2,645,049 10,081,481
Year 5 5,432,845 2,008,627 7,441,472
Onwards 17,240,324 3,416,430 20,656,754
TOTAL 58,974,746 21,404,369 80,379,115

The federation does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored

within the federation’s general management function.

Amounts recognized in profit or loss

Particulars Included within FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Depreciation on right of use assets Note4.36 15,657,207 -
Interest expense on unwinding of lease liabilities Note4.35 6,177,931 -
Expense relating to short-term leases Note4.35 1,450,272 -

Expense relating to leases of low value assets

Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the lease liability

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets

www.nefscun.org.np
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4.11 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Others Total
Purchased

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2077 1,654,940 1,654,940
Addition during the year

Acquisition 689,319 689,319

Capitalization - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2078 2,344,259 2,344,259
Addition during the Year

Acquisition 197,750 197,750

Capitalization - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2079 2,542,009 2,542,009
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2077 668,501 668,501
Amortisation charge for the year 278,889 278,889
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Ashadh end 2078 947,390 947,390
Impairment for the year -
Amortisation charge for the year 356,646 356,646
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Ashadh end 2079 1,304,036 1,304,036
Intangible Asset-Work in Progress 16,901,789 16,901,789
Net Book Value
As on 1 Shrawan 2077 986,439 986,439
As on Ashadh end 2078 1,396,869 1,396,869
As on Ashadh end 2079 18,139,762 18,139,762

Intangible asset work in progress as at 32nd Ashadh 2079 includes expenditure incurred on "Myra software" amounting to
Rs. 16,601,789 (refer Note 4.26 for details)of which invoice has been received from M/s Neosys Technology Private Limited
and Rs. 300,000 of other direct expenses.
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4.12 Deferred tax assets and liabilities:
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a tax rate of 10% (FY 2077-78: 10%). Deferred tax assets have
been recognized in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the
management believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2079 31st Ashad 2078

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets net

Opening Balance as at 1st Shrawan (5,031,262) (3,958,714)
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised
in profit or loss 1,043,858 (290,813)
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised
in OCI (2,597,284) (781,735)
Closing balance as at 31st Ashad (6,584,688) (5,031,262)

Details of the deferred tax assets, amounts recognized in profit or loss and amounts recognized in other comprehensive
income are as follows:

Particulars Asset/ (Liability)
As at As at As at
32nd Ashad 2079 31st Ashad 2078 1st Ashad 2077
Property, Plant & Equipment-Land (9,571,054) (6,827,115) (6,827,115)
Property, Plant & Equipment-Others (3,193,656) (2,422,757) (2,011,919)
Intangible Assets (21,252) (27,130) -
Provision for Gratuity 1,332,550 1,019,370 1,648,720
Provision for Leave benefits 4,589,460 3,226,370 3,231,600
Lease liabilities (net of right of use assets) 279,264 - -
(6,584,688) (5,031,262) (3,958,714)
Particulars (Charged)/Credited to Profit or Loss
32nd Ashad 2079 31st Ashad 2078
Property, Plant & Equipment-Land - -
Property, Plant & Equipment-Others (770,899) (410,838)
Intangible Assets 5,877 (27,130)
Provision for Gratuity 166,525 152,385
Provision for Leave benefits 1,363,090 (5,230)
Lease liabilities (net of right of use assets) 279,264 0
1,043,858 (290,813)
Particulars (Charged)/Credited to OCI
32nd Ashad 2079 31st Ashad 2078
Property, Plant & Equipment-Land (2,743,938) -
Property, Plant & Equipment-Others - -
Intangible Assets -
Provision for Gratuity 146,655 (781,735)
Provision for Leave benefits - -
Lease liabilities (net of right of use assets) -
(2,597,284) (781,735)
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4.13 Other Assets

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Stock of stationery items 5,132,600 5,533,709 6,617,774
VAT Receivable 210,942 29,535 20,708
Stock of silver coins 278,000 400,000 400,000
Receivable from Stabilization Fund 8,373,578 6,635,822 3,024,823
Assets related to Stabiliation Fund 845,582 939,535 -
Trade Receivables 822,098 898,042 132,873
Advances and Prepayments 33,346,107 13,771,387 1,338,313
f;tee];ald expense related to loans to staff at concessional 26.240.529 25.325.000 12.821.376
Other Receivables 2,369,974 306,269 301,510
Total 77,619,409 53,839,299 24,657,377

Advances and Prepayments includes Rs. 2.40 crores advance paid to M/s Neosys Technology Private Limited (refer Note

4.26 for details)

4.14 Deposits from Member Co-operatives

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Regular Savings 282,066,252 236,966,464 198,156,681
Optional Savings 369,027,046 634,501,447 483,538,133

Fixed Savings
Special Savings

5,151,396,251
10,249,463,863

8,415,650,001
10,824,635,688

5,213,979,001
9,088,341,279

Credit Union Savings 334,151,993 521,320,949 451,475,382
NEFSCUN Transaction Savings 245,224,579 342,999,884 315,529,915
Raiffeisen Savings 135,117,990 263,048,586 221,394,781
Daily Savings 42,968,481 80,905,254 27,197,240
Share Dividend Savings 175,027,093 96,937,074 50,093,665
Program Savings 281,750 298,750 348,750
Central Liquidity Savings 1,093,137,540 125,373,992 123,472,556
Pandemic & Disaster Savings - 519,778 501,895
Share related Savings 3,238,919 3,133,809 -
Regular Accumulated Savings 1,365,150 - -
District Cooperative Special Savings 256,400,986 248,909,370 -
Total 18,338,867,893 21,795,201,047 16,174,029,278

4.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are financial liabilities and are measured at amortized cost. The details of borrowings are as follows:

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Domestic Borrowings
Banks and Financial Institutions 1,182,000,000 - -
National Youth Council-Revolving Fund 78,900,000 108,900,000 156,550,000
Sub Total (A) 1,260,900,000 108,900,000 156,550,000
Foreign Borrowings
Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - -
Other Institutions - - -
Sub Total - - -
i%%e,, 1,260,900,000 108,900,000 156,550,000

q0%
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The federation has obtained loans from various banks and financial institutions as mentioned hereunder:
Effective Interest

Particulars Tenure Amount
Rate

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited 8.00% lyear 18,000,000
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited 8.25% lyear 526,000,000
National Co-operative Bank Limited 8.00% lyear 63,000,000
Lumbini Bikas Bank Limited 8.25% lyear 368,000,000
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited 8.50% lyear 99,000,000
Jyoti Bikas Bank Limited 8.25% lyear 90,000,000
Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank Limited 8.25% lyear 18,000,000
Total 1,182,000,000

Loan from National Youth Council (NYC) was received under an arrangement where the proceeds were to be disbursed to
various member co-operatives as interest-free loans. The loan is repayable upon receipt from the members. The loan does not
carry any interest cost. The details of the loan are as follows:

Particulars Agreement Date Amount

Loan from NYC to NEFSCUN for providing loan against academic/other

certificate through member co-operatives. 29:03-2075 50,750,000
Loan from NYC to NEFSCUN for prowdmg collateral loans to young entre- 07-03-2074 9,700,000
preneurs through member co-operatives.

Loap from NYC to NEFSCUN for pr9v1d1ng loan against academic/other 21-02-2075 6,300,000
certificate through member co-operatives.

Loan from NYC to NEFSCUN under entrepreneurs'hlp programme for provid- 26-01-2076 12,150,000
ing collateral-free loans through member co-operatives.

TOTAL 78,900,000

4.16 Provision for Employee Benefits
As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077

Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations 13,325,500 10,193,700 16,487,200
Other long-term employee benefit liabilities 45,894,600 32,263,700 32,316,000
Total 59,220,100 42,457,400 48,803,200

Defined Benefit Obligations

The federation provides a gratuity scheme to its permanent employees. The scheme has been classified as a defined benefit
plan. The scheme entitles the employees to receive payments upon completion of employment as per the federation's employ-
ee bylaws. The federaton has registered with the Social Security Fund and has started to deposit contributions into the fund
from April 14, 2021. Employees who join after that date are eligible for social security fund contributions, which is in the
natue of a defined contribution plan (refer Note 3.14) . The principal plan provisions are as follows:

Years of service Gratuity payment rule

For 1 to 5 years , half month Last drawn salary provision

More than 5 years and upto 10 years Last drawn salary x number of years x 0.50
More than 10 years and upto 15 years Last drawn salary x number of years x 1.00
More than 15 years and upto 20 years Last drawn salary x number of years x 1.50
More than 20 years Last drawn salary x number of years x 2.00

The defined benefit obligations are unfunded.

4.16.1: Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligation

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Present value of defined benefit obligations 13,325,500 10,193,700 16,487,200

Fair value ofpranassets - - -
Recogu}%gﬁiﬂ‘lﬁ-ﬁy&° r defined benefit obligations 13,325,500 10,193,700 16,4@,209

@% =L Gl
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4.16.1.1: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 10,193,700 16,487,200
Service Cost 910,578 1,327,303
Interest Cost 754,674 1,220,008
Actuarial (gain)/loss on remeasurement 1,466,548 (7,817,354)
Payments made - (1,023,457)
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end 13,325,500 10,193,700
4.16.1.2: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Current service costs 910,578 1,327,303
Interest on obligation 754,674 1,220,008
Total - 1,665,252 2,547,311
4.16.1.3: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Actuarial remeasurement loss/(gain) 1,466,548 (7,817,354)
Total - 1,466,548 (7,817,354)
4.16.1.4: Actuarial assumptions

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Discount rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan asset - - -
Future salary increase 8.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years

4.16.1.5: Sensitivity analysis

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption at the end of the reporting period is as shown below:

0.50% 0.50%
Sensitivity Level Increase Decrease
Impact on Defined benefit obligation due to change in
discount rate (1,541,700) 1,824,800
Impact on Defined benefit obligation due to change in
salary escalation rate 1,764,300 (1,523,700)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

4.16.1.6: Maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of defined benefit obligations have been presented herewith:

Expected benefit payments Amount

Within the next 12 months 452,715
1-2 years 499,730
2-3 years 580,219
3-4 years 611,062
4-5 years 740,165
Beyond 5 years 5,820,619
Weighted average duration of the plan 13years
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Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The federation provides two paid leave schemes under this category; namely home leave and sick leave; to its employees.
Home Leave: Employees are entitled to 30 days of paid home leave for each year of service. Unavailed home leaves can be
accumulated upto maximum 90 days beyond which the leaves are encashed. Accumulated leaves can be availed at anytime in
the future and any leave balance remaining unused are encashed at the time of completion of employment.

Sick Leave: Employees are entitled to 12 days of paid sick leaves for each year of service. Unavailed sick leaves can be
accumulated indefinitely. Accumulated leaves can be availed at anytime in the future and any leave balance remaining unused
are encashed at the time of completion of employment.

4.16.2: Other Long-term employee benefit liabilities
As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077

Present value of other long-term employee benefits 45,894,600 32,263,700 32,316,000
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 45,894,600 32,263,700 32,316,000

4.16.2.1: Movement in the present value of other long-term employee benefits

Particulars FY2078-79 FY2077-78

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 32,263,700 32,316,000
Service Cost 6,143,625 4,017,060
Interest Cost 2,329,117 2,330,959
Actuarial (gain)/loss on remeasurement 5,953,561 (3,113,444)
Payments made (795,403) (3,286,875)
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end 45,894,600 32,263,700

4.16.2.2: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Current service costs 6,143,625 4,017,060
Interest on obligation 2,329,117 2,330,959
Actuarial (gain)/loss on remeasurement 5,953,561 (3,113,444)
Total - 14,426,303 3,234,575

4.16.2.3: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Amounts recognized in OCI - -

Total - - -

4.16.2.4: Actuarial assumptions
As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077

Discount rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan asset - - -
Future salary increase 8.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58years 58years S8years

A
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4.16.2.5: Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption at the end of the reporting period is as shown below:

1.00% 1.00%
Sensitivity Level Increase Decrease
Impact on Defined benefit obligation due to change in discount rate (5,294,000) 6,396,700
Impact on Defined benefit obligation due to change in salary escalation rate 6,183,100 (5,233,300)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on other long-term em-
ployee obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

4.16.2.6: Maturity analysis
The maturity analysis of defined benefit obligations have been presented herewith:

Expected benefit payments Amount

Within the next 12 months 3,273,884
1-2 years 3,305,114
2-3 years 3,353,361
3-4 years 3,460,160
4-5 years 3,438,548
Beyond 5 years 20,252,167
Weighted average duration of the plan 26years

4.17 Deferred Grant Income
As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077

Balance in deferred grant income (opening) 527,874 586,527 651,697
Amortized grant recognized in profit or loss (52,787) (58,653) (65,170)
Balance in deferred grant income (closing) 475,087 527,874 586,527

The federation had received a grant from the Department of co-operatives for various fixed assets for overall institutional
development during FY 2075-76. The federation had acquired various items of property, plant and equipment totalling Rs.
1,251,703 (Rs. 1,107,702 plus VAT) of which 60% amounting to Rs. 6,64,621 (excluding VAT) had been reimbursed by the
department of co-operatives. This amount has been recognized as deferred grant and is amortized to profit or loss over the
useful life of the assets in the ratio of depreciation on those assets.

4.18 Grant Liabilities
As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077

1. Grant from Safer Migration (SAMI) project of HELVETAS
Opening Grant Liabilities - - (138,470)
Addition during the year - - 138,470

Expenses during the year - - .

A. Closing Grant Liabilities - - -

2. Grant from World Council of Credit Unions (WOCCU)

Opening Grant Liabilities 477,915 477,915 -
Addition during the year - - 477,915
Expenses during the year - - -
B. Closing Grant Liabilities 477,915 477,915 477,915

Associates
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3. Grant from International Labour Organization (ILO)

Opening Grant Liabilities - 3,540,934 -
Addition during the year - - 5,033,356
Expenses during the year - (3,540,934) (1,492,422)
C. Closing Grant Liabilities - - 3,540,934
4. Grant from Association of Asian Confederation of Credit Unions (ACCU)
Opening Grant Liabilities 236,590 422,395 -
Addition during the year - - 455,400
Expenses during the year - (185,805) (33,005)
D. Closing Grant Liabilities 236,590 236,590 422,395
Total (A+B+C+D) 714,505 714,505 4,441,244

Grants related to income that were intended to compensate various expenses have been recognized as liabilities and are

recognized as income as and when the expenses are incurred.

4.19 Other Liabilities

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Software Deposits 575,177 575,177 610,575
Trade and Other Deposits 4,738,356 3,406,562 3,701,956
Income received in advance 1,874,834 873,451 -
TDS Payable 48,722,882 40,342,818 34,463,716
VAT Payable 6,092,904 - -
Payable under NEFSCUN-CMSP - - 100,239
Payable to Stabilization Fund 117,841,022 53,545,440 26,062,425
Staff Bonus Payable 23,074,376 17,548,646 15,757,812
Social Security Fund Payable 2,618,315 - -
Other Liabilities 28,573,329 16,638,210 8,352,204
Total 234,111,195 132,930,305 89,048,927
4.21 Share capital

As on 32nd As at 31st Ashadh  As at 1st Shrawan
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 2078 2077
Opening Share Capital 1,458,700,000 961,531,000 496,002,700
Addition during the year 373,180,900 534,325,400 470,240,300
Redemption/transfer during the year (161,396,400) (37,156,400) (4,712,000)
Total 1,670,484,500 1,458,700,000 961,531,000

Share capital represent residual interest in the federation. These shares are puttable at the option of the holders but qualify for
classification as equity as per paragraphs 16A and 16B of NAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. As per the prevailing
laws, members can require the federation to redeem the shares at their discretion. The shares have a face value of Rs. 100.
All shares are of the same category and there are no shares with differential rights with regards to dividend or otherwise. No

expenses have been incurred for issuing shares.
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4.22 General Reserve
General reserve is a statutory reserve required to be maintained as per the Co-operatives Act, 2074. As per the

prevailing laws, the federation needs to transfer 25% of net profits of each year to this reserve. In addition, profit
on sale of property, plant and equipment and other fixed assets; amortized portion of deferred income in respect
of grant related to assets and amount remaining undistributed by the end of the fiscal year out of patronage
refund fund appropriated in the immediately preceeding year are also transferred to this reserve.

As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st

Particulars Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077

Opening balance 232,494,408 132,712,663 87,956,024
Appropriation from net profits for the year 114,456,361 99,673,223 38,019,401
Amortization of grant related to assets 52,787 58,652 78,094
Transfer from Patronage Refund Fund 10,506 49,870 -
Transfer from Other Reserves and Funds - - 6,659,144
Total 347,014,063 232.494.408 132,712,663

4.23 Other Statutory Reserves
As per the Co-operatives Act, 2074; out of the profits for a fiscal year remaining after apportionment to the

general reserve; 25% is transferred to patronage refund fund. This amount is distributed to the members as
per the methodology prescribed in the act. Any amount remaining undistributed by the end of the next fisal
year has to be transferred to the general reserve. Similarly, out of the profits for a fiscal year remaining after
apportionment to the general reserve; 0.5% is transferred to co-operative promotion fund. This amount has to
be deposited into the Poverty Alleviation Fund set-up under the Ministry of Land Management, Co-operatives
and Poverty Alleviation.

Out of profits for the year remaining after allocation to general reserve, patronage refund reserve and co-
operatives promotion fund; 70% is transferred to share dividend fund and 5% to each of losses recovery fund,
member education fund, co-operative development fund, community development fund, stabilization fund. 4%

is transferred to other risk management fund and 1% is transferred to staff welfare fund.

As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077
Cooperative Promotion Fund 2,203,025 1,495,098 866,104
Share Dividend Fund 169,685,942 144,836,434 63,730,020
Losses Recovery Fund 29,711,380 17,590,956 6,452,473
Member Education Fund 27,507,575 15,387,151 4,248,668
Cooperative Development Fund 27,507,575 15,387,151 4,248,668
Community Development Fund 27,471,075 15,387,151 4,248,668
Stablization Fund 12,120,424 11,138,483 4,248,668
Other Risk Management Fund 20,834,822 11,138,483 -
Total 317.041.819 232.360.905 88.043.269
4.24 Other Reserves and Funds

As on 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Particulars Ashadh, 2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077
Employee Welfare Fund 13,835,432 11,138,483 -
NECUDEF Fund 611,861 611,861 611,861
Welfare Fund 417,546 417,546 61,841
Natural Disaster Welfare Fund 900,000 900,000 900,000
Founder President Award Fund 467,529 467,529 467,529
Total 16,232,368 13,535,419 2,041,232
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4.25 Contingent liabilities
The federation does not have any material contingent liabilities that warrant disclosures

4.26 Capital commitments

The federation has entered into a tripartite agreement with M/s Neosys Technology Private Limited and M/s
Rara Digital Lab Private Limited whereby M/s Neosys will develop an ERP-based software named "Myra"
designed for the co-operative sector. As per the contract, the total cost of the software is estimated to be Rs.
20 crores of which; 60% amounting to Rs. 12 crores will be paid by the federation and 40% amounting to Rs.
8 crores by M/s Rara Digital Lab. The federation will retain 60% of the rights to intellectual property of the
software and related revenue from the software.

The federation has made a payment of Rs. 40,601,789 crores till 32 Ashadh 2079 of which; invoice has been
received for Rs.16,601,789 which has been shown as an intangible asset work in progress (refer Note 4.11). The
remaining advance amount paid of Rs. 2.40 crores has been grouped within "Advances and Prepayments" under
"Other Assets" (refer Note 4.13).
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4.27 Interest Income

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Cash and cash equivalent 41,295,995 151,255,183
Placement with bank and financial institutions 399,043,446 618,427,827
Loan and advances to member co-operatives 1,548,557,951 832,737,170
Investment securities - -
Loan and advances to staff 8,931,292 1,215,810
Other Interest Income - -
Total interest income 1,997,828,684 1,603,635,990

4.28 Interest Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions 103,502,043 -
Deposits from member co-operatives 1,135,518,834 979,131,985

Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other - -

Total Interest Expenses 1,239,020,876 979,131,985

4.29 Sales and Other Operating Income

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Sale of stationery items 8,515,590 9014,783
Less: Discount on sales (1,325,206) (1,332,015)
Net Sale of stationery items 7,190,384 7,682,768
Other income from interlending activities (refer 4.29.1) 39,715,200 23,866,142
Income from services to members (refer 4.29.2) 54,889,947 47,225,551
Income from SACCOS Summit 8,208,991 -
Other income from members (refer 4.29.3) 14,135,934 12,805,922
Total Sales and Other Operating Income 124,140,456 91,580,383

4.29.1 Other income from Interlending activities

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Loan management fees 36,601,409 22,201,576
Valuation and related fees 355,000 823,750
Late fines and penalties on overdue loans 2,754,441 832,566
Late fines and penalties on overdue compulsory deposits - 3,650
Account closure fees 4,350 4,600
Total other income from Interlending activities 39,715,200 23,866,142

4.29.2 Income from services to members

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

PROBATION Programme income 10,761,611 10,969,027
ACCESS Programme income 4,265,620 4,070,796
CURBS Programme income 9,882,688 9,827,433
SARAW Programme income - -
DU partinership Program 322,478 102,893
Training Program Income 10,167,248 7,667,855
Bulletin Income 220,221 148,595
Software Sales & Renewal Income 11,571,857 9,276,318
International Exposure Visit Fee 338,937 6,637
Program and Development Income 2,615,085 2,367,239
Insurance and Remmittence 1,419,901 1,392,038
Other Incomes 3,324,302 1,396,720
Total income from services to members 54,889,947 ., 47,225,551
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4.29.3 Other income from members

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Membership Fees 376,110 340,000
Annual Membership Fees 13,747,724 12,451,822
Fines and penalties related to delayed renewal 12,100 14,100
Total other income from members 14,135,934 12,805,922
4.30 Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Cost of stationery goods sold (refer 4.30.1) 4,641,757 4,962,662
Programme and Development expenses (refer 4.30.2) 2,202,654 1,788,690
Software and Information Technology related expenses 6,721,486 5,578,577
Member service related expenses (refer 4.30.3) 17,579,436 9,351,924
SACCOS Summit expenses 7,048,645 -
Training and related expenses 5,583,692 3,788,131
Total Cost of Goods Sold and Other Operating Expenses 43,777,670 25,469,984
4.30.1 Cost of Stationery Goods Sold

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Opening stock of stationery 5,533,709 6,617,774
Purchases 4,235,448 3,849,297
Royalty expenses 5,200 29,300
Closing stock of stationery (5,132,600) (5,533,709)
Total Cost of Goods Sold 4,641,757 4,962,662
4.30.2 Programme and Development Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
National Youth Council programme expenses 255,065 18,030
Aadharsheela programme expenses 1,345,942 877,410
International Labour Organization (I.L.O) programme expenses - 48,756
Poverty Alleviation Fund programme expenses - 19,265
Department of cooperatives programme expenses - 691,397
Other programme and development expenses 601,648 133,833
Total Programme and Development Expenses 2,202,654 1,788,690
4.30.3 Member Service Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
ACCESS Programme expenses 629,210 232,016
PROBATION Programme expenses 1,469,980 504,192
CURBS Programme expenses 1,316,575 861,695
Member Information System Programme expenses 163,980 106,359
Unification and monitoring programme expenses 120,000 67,096
D.U. Partnership programme expenses 3,412,235 3,426,957
Insurance and remittance programme expenses 27,802 166,824
Rebate on programme cost to members 1,768,584 -
Interlending programme expenses 2,961,674 668,195
Participation expenses in high level international conferences and meetings - 55,000
SACCOS and NEFSCUN initiative expenses 237,016 236,698
Business development interaction expenses - 161,453
Need based programme expenses at field offices 4,330,604 463,745
Transformation programme expenses - 1,524,015
Review meeting and related expenses 1,141,776 877,679
Total Member Service Expenses 17,579,436 9,351,924
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4.31 Net Trading income

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation - -
Net trading income - -
4.32 Other Incomes

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Amortization of deferred income (grant related to assets) 52,787 58,653
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments 1,358,485 678,680
Patronage refund income receipt 4,246,241 3,588,690
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Other - -
Total 5,657,514 4,326,023
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to member co-operatives 65,029,244 67,410,424
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to staff - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property, plant and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on other receivables - -
Total 65,029,244 67,410,424
4.34 Personnel Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Salary and allowances 117,706,536 85,879,601
Gratuity expense 1,665,252 2,547,311
Social Security Fund contribution expense 17,849,257 1,243,616
Citizen Investment Trust contribution expense - 5,852,154
Uniform 900,000 1,430,000
Training & development expenses 873,761 1,629,225
Leave encashment 14,426,303 3,234,575
Medical expenses - -
Insurance premium 4,592,124 4,660,075
Amortization of prepaid staff expense related to loans at concessional rates 8,931,292 1,215,810
Subtotal 166,944,525 107,692,367
Employees Bonus 23,074,376 17,548,646
Total personnel expenses 190,018,902 125,241,013
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4.35 Other Administrative and Operating Expense

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Board and Sub-Committee Meeting Allowances 4,208,900 2,923,500
Board and Sub-Committee Meeting Expenses 1,167,295 468,149
Directors' training and capacity enhancement expenses 608,637

Statutory auditors' remuneration 226,000 250,000
Statutory audit related expenses 206,168 13,380
Internal audit fee expenses 1,800,000 -
Internal audit related expenses 25,387 -
Unwinding of lease liabilities 6,177,931 -
Lease expenses (related to short-term lease for current year) 1,450,272 15,665,266
Annual General Meeting expenses 1,346,538 1,083,052
Annual Report Publication 88,140 149,000
Professional and legal expenses 1,143,505 386,132
Office supplies and stationery expenses 2,688,857 1,987,126
Fuel and transportation expenses 2,349,558 1,568,910
Monitoring, evaluation and related expenses 487,116 667,408
Repair & Maintenance 1,769,603 1,231,872
Communication expenses 2,287,163 2,269,459
Membership fees and expenses 2,578,945 2,247,252
Newspapers, periodicals & books 98,234 96,020
Public relation and guest entertainment expenses 1,489,549 922,190
Advertisement, promotion and marketing expenses 326,250 256,011
NEFSCUN Day Expenses 491,637 254,589
Extended Forum Expenses - 405,007
Festival and other celebration expenses 477895 279,056
Mobile application related expenses - 49,602
Calendar and other publication expenses 769,360 660,451
Insurance premium expenses 1,014,476 275,354
Security management expenses 1,817,452 1,485,394
Electricity, water and other office utilities 2,939,640 2,455,391
Bank charges 285,803 105,579
Casual labour and carriage expenses 2,003,925 1,271,093
New office opening expenses 4,238,209 910,906
Registration and Renewal 557,605 447,709
Postage and courier expenses 59,459 45,117
Notice publication expenses 189,936 206,903
VAT related expenses 6,092,904 7,285,697
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,109,373 -
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,905,018 601,803
Other expenses 901,232 469,795
Total Administrative and Operating Expenses 57,377,968 49,394,173

VAT related expense for FY 2077-78 is in respect of reversal of VAT input claims. As per the VAT laws; the federation can
claim input on VAT paid only upto the proportion of vatable income as compared to total income. The remaining vat input
has been recognized as an expense. In FY 2078-79; the related expense has been classified to respective expense heads. The
segregation of the expenses could not reasonably be made for FY 2077-78 and hence; has been shown as a lumpsum figure.
During FY 2078-79; the tax assessment of the federation was conducted by the Large Taxpayer's Office, Lalitpur. Pursuant to
the order, a demand of Rs. 6,092,904 in respect of VAT has been raised which has been accepted by the federation.

4.36 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Depreciation on property and equipment 6,935,719 5,832,391
Depreciation on right to use assets 15,657,207 -

Depreciation on investment property - -

Amortisation of intangible assets 356,646 278,889

Total 22,949,572 6,111,279
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4.37 Non Operating Income

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total - -
4.37.1 Other Income

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Grant income

Other

Total - -
4.38 Non Operating Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Loan written off

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense.

Total - -
4.39 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Current tax expense

Current year 52,445,064 44,689,374
Adjustments for prior years 172,984 778,662
Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,043,858) 290,813
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 51,574,191 45,758,849
4.39.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78
Profit before tax 509,452,421 446,783,538
Tax amount at tax rate of 10% (FY 2077-78: 10%) 50,945,242 44,678,354
Difference in depreciation as per books and as allowed by tax laws 911,686 (437,968)
?j;;séﬁe;t Il)lelrrfsfeizzv c;f gratuity and leave expense deductible upon 1,529,615 147,155
Loss on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment not deductible for 301.439 )
tax purposes. ’

Adjustment in respect of lease allowed upto the amount payable during the (1.286.457) )
year as per tax.

Income not taxable as per tax laws (565,751) (426,737)
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 609,290 728,570
Total income tax expense 52,445,064 44,689,374
Effective tax rate (calculated on book profits) 10.29% 10.00%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1. Risk Management

In particular, the federation program provides financial services to its members. The members then use the proceeds
to further provide loans to various individuals. Since people from rural households lack awareness and business skills,
transactions with them requires proper due-diligence and care. This type of financial service is also more prone to
risk as financial services have to be provided by making the person aware and capable of such services. Therefore,
identification of risk has been carried out and adequate control system has been adopted in order to mitigate such
current and possible future risks in the Federation. The robust risk management capabilities are imperative in order to
achieve an effective risk management framework and contain the risks associated with the business, a fully functional
Account Supervisory Committee is responsible for identifying reporting, controlling and managing credit risk,
operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Account Supervisory Committee oversees global, macro, micro
and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the
oversight of Senior Management, Account Supervisory Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon
and issue instructions as appropriate.

Account Supervisory Committee:

The Account Supervisory Committee is an independent committee appointed by the annual general meeting, has
the responsibility for oversight of implementation of risk management framework and overall internal audit of the
federation. The committee assists the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard
to risk appetite that the federation is able and willing to assume in its exposures and business activities, risk
management, compliance framework, and governance structure that supports it. It periodically reviews the
financial data to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the internal control
and risk management system is adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business.
The committee is to review the overall risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk
management system. The Account Supervisory Committee comprises of following Members:

S.N. Name Designation
1 Mr. Nabaraj Sapkota Co-ordinator
2 Mrs. Subhadra Devi Mahato Member
3 Mr. Sushil Kumar Basnyat Member

Risk Governance

Federation implements policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprise level arising to the federation
and has inculcated risk management culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity
building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Board of Directors
is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk & Credit risk.

The Federation’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
Federation's risk blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation,
risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with best practices, and has effectively implemented the same.
The effectiveness of the Federation’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees,
senior management, and accounts supervisory committee.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk related to ability to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to
the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Federation might be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and
stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid asset positions is not available
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to the Federation on acceptable terms. Due to lack of liquidity, entities are not able to lend as per the demand of
the customer, they are not able to repay the savings and other legal obligations on time. Therefore, the federation
has managed the liquidity as per its requirement in time to prevent such a situation.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of a bond or other
fixed-rate investment. The Federation takes the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest
rates:

Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabilities.

When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not match,
the amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability that any borrower will not be able to repay the loan as per the conditions accepted
by the borrower. Credit is the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution. The future of the
financial institution is at stake when the borrower is unable to repay the loan borrower had agreed at the time
of taking the loan. Therefore, it is necessary to study the impacting indicators to get information about the
condition of the loan at risk. In order to prevent the loss of the loan invested and to minimize the risks related
to it, standard loan disbursement procedure is followed to reduce the risk accordingly. Since every employee
involved in the process of approving the loan and investing is assigned a certain responsibility, the concerned
employee has to invest the loan after conducting proper risk-assessment. The following procedures/practices
have been followed:

Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacity for the demanded loan,

e Invest in loans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

e Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the fund is utilized

for income generating activities/businesses,

Motivated members to increase savings,

Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan application, for

business loans,

Taking necessary documents of secured property, if collateral loan,

Classify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the co-operative directives,

Disbursement of loans within the limits as per its bylaws,

Continuously monitor and inspect the loan from the unit manager, branch manager and monitoring level.

In the monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score is given in this title including the title of

loan recovery of the branch to be monitored.

e  Each branch is audited atleast once a year. While conducting such audit, it is compulsory for Internal
Auditors to inspect the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the details observed in meetings
through Audit report, either observed compliance and other discrepancies or not.

Operational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. Since the operational
risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal control system is strengthened.

Market Risk

The Federation recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Federation
caused due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign
exchange rates and volatilities of those prices. After Understanding the market conditions and demands, the
Board and the management bring programs to suit the potentials and conditions of the market, and reduce
the risk by providing appropriate responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom based on their
capabilities. For this, the internal control system has been strengthened.
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The following has been considered in market analysis:
e Information about competitors' services (programs) and interest rates
e  Attitude of the members towards the organization
e  Perception of other institutions towards this federation
e  Cost of service
e  Fluctuations from changes in policy rules
e  Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers

e  Customer dropout/retention rate

Institutional or Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularly observable if the company
experiences a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on compliance risk, it is a
leading factor in modern risk management. In order to manage this risk, the following things has been considered:

e  Strategies has been decided or modified according to the overall economic and social environment of the
country,

e  Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,

e Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and desires of our
customers

e Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization,

Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial
activities in a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board and management has adopted policies and
procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the federation's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
management and the accounts supervisory committee. The accounts supervisory committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the federation's system of internal control during the year and has provided feedback to the
Board as appropriate. The federation has appointed a Chartered Accountants firm as Internal Auditor to maintain
independency on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit Department monitors compliance
with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its
program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined
by arisk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Board of Directors
through Account Supervisory Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer
and related department for initiating immediate corrective measures.

Compliance Risk

The Federation is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
transparency and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the day-to-day operations the three
lines of defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Federation.
The first line of defense lies with the respective Federation departments and units, which are responsible for
ensuring that compliance risks are identified, understood and reported to the management and to monitoring
and compliance officer. The second line of defense lies with Monitoring and Compliance Officer, who assesses
and monitors the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the management.
The monitoring and compliance officer reports to the CEO. The Compliance function assists the Federation in
identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the institution, its
operations and the personal conduct of staff members.
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5.2 Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement
in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the
liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.,
an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the
liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level
1 inputs.

Level 2-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3-

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy:
2078-2079 2077-2078
Particulars Level I Level 11 Level III | Level I | Level I1 Level 111
Property, plant and equipment-land 182,264,468 154,800,784
Quoted Equities - -
Unquoted Equities
Total 0.00 182,264,468 0.00 0.00 154,800,784 0.00
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortised Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value through
other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

Financial Assets

As on 31st Ashar 2079

Amortised Cost

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives

4,417,583,400
1,780,000,000
15,573,240,943

4,417,583,400
1,780,000,000
15,573,240,943

Loans and Advances to Staff 90,184,329 - 90,184,329
Investment Securities - 2,311,000 2,311,000
Other Assets 9,473,676 - 9,473,676
Total Financial Assets 21,870,482,348 2,311,000 21,872,793,348
Financial Liabilities

Deposits from Member Co-operatives 18,338,867,893 - 18,338,867,893
Borrowings 1,260,900,000 - 1,260,900,000
Other Liabilities 117,841,022 - 117,841,022
Total Financial Liabilites 19,717,608,916 - 19,717,608,916
Financial Assets As on 31st Ashar 2078

Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,196,456,327 - 4,196,456,327
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 8,027,400,000 - 8,027,400,000
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives 11,391,893,113 - 11,391,893,113
Loans and Advances to Staff 64,802,988 - 64,802,988
Investment Securities - 1,311,000 1,311,000
Other Assets 7,933,864 - 7,933,864
Total Financial Assets 23,688,486,291 1,311,000 23,689,797,291

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from Member Co-operatives

21,795,201,047

21,795,201,047

Borrowings 108,900,000 - 108,900,000
Other Liabilities 53,545,440 - 53,545,440
Total Financial Liabilites 21,957,646,487 - 21,957,646,487
Financial Assets As on 1st Shrawan 2077
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,178,044,032 - 7,178,044,032
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 2,900,000,000 - 2,900,000,000
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives 7,250,439,571 - 7,250,439,571
Loans and Advances to Staff 44,591,358 - 44,591,358
Investment Securities - 1,311,000 1,311,000
Other Assets 3,557,696 - 3,557,696
Total Financial Assets 17,376,632,657 1,311,000 17,377,943,657

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from Member Co-operatives

16,174,029,278

16,174,029,278

Borrowings 156,550,000 - 156,550,000
Other Liabilities 26,062,425 - 26,062,425
Total Financial Liabilites 16,356,641,703 - 16,356,641,703
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5.4 Related Party Disclosures
List of Board of Directors, Account Supervisory Committee and Key Managerial Personnel
The members of the Board of Directors, Accounts Supervisory Committee and key managerial personnel have been

identified as the related parties of the organization.

The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

R

S.N. Name Relationship ap[]))o?:ﬁl(:lfen ¢ re]t)iignoefn "
1 Mr. Paritosh Paudyal Chairperson 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
2 Mr. Chandra Prasad Dhakal Senior Vice Chairperson 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
3 Ms. Shanti Adhikari Vice Chairperson 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
4 Mr. Damodar Adhikari General Secretary 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
5 Mr. Deepak Paneru Treasurer 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
6 Mr. Yagya Prasad Dhakal Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
7 Mr. Madhav Prasad Joshi Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
8 Ms. Goma Nepal Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
9 Mr. Ghanshyam Adhikari Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
10 | Mr. Chandi Prasad Sharma Paudel Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
11 Ms. Reena Acharya Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
12 | Mr. Nhuchhe Narayan Shrestha Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
13 | Ms. Kamala Devi Giri Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
14 | Mr. Jibas Raj Khadka Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
15 | Ms. Mandra Mishra Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
16 | Ms. Bidhya Koirala Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
17 | Mr. Sandeep Sapkota Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
18 | Mr. Hareram Prasad Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
19 | Mr. Janak Khatri Board Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04

20 | Mr. Nabaraj Sapkota ASC Coordinator 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
21 Ms. Subhadra Devi Mahato ASC Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
22 | Mr. Sushil Kumar Basnyat ASC Member 2076.09.05 2080.09.04
23 | Mr. Prakash Prasad Pokharel Chief Executive Officer 2078.08.02 2080.03.31

Transactions with and Payments to Board of Directors, Account Supervisory Committee and Key
Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors and ASC Meeting Allowances and Facilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Meeting Allowance 2,563,200 1,677,000
Communication and Fuel Facilities 466,000 664,000
Accidental insurance premium (Insured amount: Rs. 5,00,000 per person) 10,272 12,100
Life Insurance Premium ( 10 years Life Insurance) 748,979

TOTAL 3,788,451 2,353,100
Loans, advances and other receivables/payables - -
Receivables written off - -
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Basic Salary 2,178,000 1,935,000
Grade 73,810 -
Allowances 600,000 600,000
Provident Fund and Social Security Fund Contribution 450,362 160,500
Festival expenses 181,500 150,000
Medical expenses 181,500 165,000
Accumulated leave payments -
Uniform Allowance 10,000 10,000
Life Insurance Premium 25,000 25,000
Vehicle Facility Yes Yes
Accommodation Facility No No
TOTAL 3,700,172 3,078,500

Loans, advances and other receivables/payables

Receivables written off

In addition to above, the Federation also provide other facilities like travelling allowance as per the Federation's

financial policy.

Merger and Acquisition

The federation has not entered into any agreement for merger or acquisition.

Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities

The federation doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.

Events after reporting date

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after

the reporting period.
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5.8 First time adoption of NFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 32nd Ashad 2079 are the first the federation has prepared in accordance with
NFRS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31st Ashad 2078, the federation prepared its financial statements in
accordance with local generally accepted accounting principles (Previous GAAP). In preparing these financial statements, the
federation’s opening statement of financial position was prepared as at 1st Shrawan 2077, the federation’s date of transition
to NFRS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the federation in restating its previous GAAP statements of
financial position as at 1st Shrawan 2077 and its previously published previous GAAP financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31st Ashad 2078.

Exemptions applied

NFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from
the retrospective application of certain NFRS. The federation has applied the following exemptions:

a) Estimates

On the assessment of estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the federation has concluded that
there is no necessity to revise the estimate under NFRS, as there is no objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
However, estimates that were required under NFRS but not required under previous GAAP are made by the federation for
the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date.

b) Deemed cost:

The federation has used the fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as on the date of transition for
land. The federation has used carrying amounts as per previous GAAP as deemed cost for other assets since those values
were broadly comparable to NFRS values.

Transition to NFRS —Reconciliation

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from
previous GAAP to NFRS in accordance with NFRS 1.

I. Reconciliation of equity as at 1st Shrawan 2077

II. Reconciliation of equity as at 31st Ashad 2078

II1. Reconciliation of statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st Ashad 2078

Previous GAAP information has been reclassified/regrouped in accordance with NFRS, wherever necessary, based on the
audited financial statement of the federation for the year ended 31st Ashad 2077 and 31st Ashad 2078.
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Reconciliation of equity as at 1st Shrawan 2077 (date of transition to NFRS) Figures in NPR
E.N. * Local GAAP Adjustments  NFRS balance
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 3,976,044,032 3,202,000,000 7,178,044,032
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 1 - 2,900,000,000 2,900,000,000
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives 2 7,421,249,749 (170,810,178) 7,250,439,571
Loans and Advances to Staff 3 - 44,591,358 44,591,358
Investment Securities 4 6,103,311,000  (6,102,000,000) 1,311,000
Current Tax Assets 5 - 103,253,243 103,253,243
Investment Property 6 - 24,861,447 24,861,447
Property and Equipment 7 131,066,197 67,284,713 198,350,910
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 7 - 986,439 986,439
Deferred Tax Assets 8 67,371 (67,371) -
Other Assets 9 157,315,505 (132,658,128) 24,657,377
Total Assets 17,789,053,855 (62,558,477)  17,726,495,377
Particulars
Liabilities
Deposits from Member Co-operatives 0 16,174,029,278 - 16,174,029,278
Borrowings 10 - 156,550,000 156,550,000
Current Tax Liabilities 5 17,364,814 (17,364,814) -
Provision for Employee Benefits 11 20,792,905 28,010,295 48,803,200
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8 - 3,958,714 3,958,714
Deferred Grant Income 12 - 586,527 586,527
Loan Loss Provision 2 113,397,444 (113,397,444)
Grant Liabilities 4,441,244 - 4,441,244
Other Liabilities 13 230,427,643 (141,378,715) 89,048,927
Total Liabilities 16,560,453,328 (83,035,437) 16,477,417,891
Equity
Share Capital 0 961,531,000 - 961,531,000
General Reserve Fund 0 132,712,663 - 132,712,663
Patronage Refund Reserve 0 28,514,551 - 28,514,551
Other Statutory Reserves 0 88,043,269 - 88,043,269
Revaluation Reserve 14 - 61,444,037 61,444,037
Retained Earnings 15 - (25,209,265) (25,209,265)
Other Reserves and Funds 16 17,799,043 (15,757,812) 2,041,232
Total Equity 1,228,600,526 20,476,960 1,249,077,486
Total Liabilities and Equity 17,789,053,855 (62,558,477)  17,726,495,377

*E.N.: Explanatory Note
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First time adoption of NFRS (continued)
Reconciliation of equity as at 31st Ashad 2078

E.N. Local GAAP Adjustments  NFRS balance
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 4,026,456,327 170,000,000 4,196,456,327
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 1 - 8,027,400,000 8,027,400,000
Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives 2 11,662,828,968 (270,935,855)  11,391,893,113
Loans and Advances to Staff 3 - 64,802,988 64,802,988
Investment Securities 4 8,198,711,000  (8,197,400,000) 1,311,000
Current Tax Assets 5 - 171,692,603 171,692,603
Investment Property 6 - 24,861,447 24,861,447
Property and Equipment 7 142,623,649 66,874,283 209,497,931
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 7 - 1,396,869 1,396,869
Deferred Tax Assets 8 29,130 (29,130) -
Other Assets 9 269,757,722 (215,918,424) 53,839,299
Total Assets 24,300,406,796 (157,255,220)  24,143,151,576
Particulars
Liabilities
Deposits from Member Co-operatives 21,795,201,047 - 21,795,201,047
Borrowings 10 - 108,900,000 108,900,000
Current Tax Liabilities 5 44,689,374 (44,689,374) -
Provision for Employee Benefits 11 24,790,173 17,667,226 42,457,400
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8 - 5,031,262 5,031,262
Deferred Grant Income 12 - 527,874 527,874
Loan Loss Provision 2 180,807,868 (180,807,868) -
Grant Liabilities 714,505 - 714,505
Other Liabilities 13 224,809,533 (91,879,229) 132,930,305
Total Liabilities 22,271,012,500 (185,250,108)  22,085,762,393
Equity
Share Capital 1,458,700,000 - 1,458,700,000
General Reserve Fund 232,494,408 - 232,494,408
Patronage Refund Reserve 74,754,918 - 74,754,918
Other Statutory Reserves 232,360,905 - 232,360,905
Revaluation Reserve 14 - 61,444,037 61,444,037
Retained Earnings 15 - (15,900,503) (15,900,503)
Other Reserves and Funds 16 31,084,065 (17,548,646) 13,535,419
Total Equity 2,029,394,295 27,994,888 2,057,389,183
Total Liabilities and Equity 24,300,406,796 (157,255,220)  24,143,151,576
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First time adoption of NFRS (continued)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st Ashad 2078

E.N. Local GAAP Adjustments NFRS balance
Interest Income 17 1,602,420,179 1,215,810 1,603,635,990
Interest Expense (979,131,985) - (979,131,985)
Net Interest Income 623,288,194 1,215,810 624,504,005
Sales and Other Operating Income 18 86,676,373 4,904,010 91,580,383
Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses 19 - (25,469,984) (25,469,984)
Net Sales and Other Operating Income 86,676,373 (20,565,974) 66,110,399
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 709,964,568 (19,350,164) 690,614,404
Net Trading Income - - -
Other Incomes 4,326,023 - 4,326,023
Total Operating Income 714,290,590 (19,350,164) 694,940,427
Impairment (Charge)/ Reversal for Loans and Other Losses (67,410,424) - (67,410,424)
Net Operating Income 646,880,167 (19,350,164) 627,530,003

Operating Expense

Personnel Expenses 20 (107,373,046) (17,867,966) (125,241,013)
Other Administrative and Operating Expenses 21 (71,530,719) 22,136,546 (49,394,173)
Depreciation & Amortisation (6,111,279) - (6,111,279)
Operating Profit 461,865,122 (15,081,584) 446,783,538
Employee Bonus Expense 20 (17,548,646) 17,548,646 -
Non Operating Income - -
Non Operating Expense - -
Profit Before Income Tax 444,316,476 2,467,062 446,783,538
Income Tax Expense - -
Current Tax (45,468,036) - (45,468,036)
Deferred Tax 22 (38,241) (252,571) (290,813)
Profit for the Year 398,810,199 2,214,490 401,024,689
Other comprehensive Income -
z:;z[;lrrrii Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit pension 23 i 7.035.619 7.035.619
Revaluation Gain on property, plant and equipment - - -
g;her comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of ) 7,035,619 7,035,619
;l;oxtal Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of 398,810,199 9,250,109 408,060,307
First time adoption of NFRS (continued)
Reconciliation of statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st Ashad 2078
Particulars E.N. Local GAAP Adjustments NFRS balance
Net cash flows from operating activities 24 (425,361,234)  (2,943,135,153)  (3,368,496,387)
Net cash flows from investing activities 24 (17,668,732) 4,326,024 (13,342,708)
Net cash flows from financing activities 24 493,442,260 (93,190,870) 400,251,390
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 24 50,412,295  (3,032,000,000) (2,981,587,704)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 25 3,976,044,032 3,202,000,000 7,178,044,032
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 25 4,026,456,327 170,000,000  4,196,456,328
=
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Explanatory Notes Related to Reconciliation of Equity and the Statement of Financial Position

EN-1: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Under GAAP, fixed term deposits with banks had been classified as "investments". Under NFRS, fixed term depsoits with
original maturity upto 3 months have been reclassified under "cash and cash equivalents" and those of longer maturity have
been classified under "Placement with banks and financial institutions".

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per GAAP 3,976,044,032 4,026,456,327
Add: Fixed term deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 3,202,000,000 170,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per NFRS 7,178,044,032 4,196,456,327
Fixed term deposits with original maturity more than 3 months
(classified as placement with banks and financial institutions) 2,900,000,000 8,027,400,000

EN-2: Loans and Advances to Member Co-operatives

Under GAAP, loans to employees had been classified under "Loan and advance investments". Loans to staff have now been
presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. Moreover, the provision for impairment on loans
(referred to as loan loss provision under GAAP) had been presented as a liability under GAAP. The provision has now been
netted-off against the gross carrying amount of loans and advances.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Loans and advances as per GAAP 7,421,249,749 11,662,828,968
Less: Loans to staff (57,412,734) (90,127,987)
Less: Provision for impairment of loans and advances (113,397,444) (180,807,868)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per NFRS 7,250,439,571 11,391,893,113

EN-3: Loans and Advances to Staff

Under GAAP; loans to staff at concessional rates of interest were measured at cost; the actual amounts disbursed less repayments.
Under NFRS; these loans have been measured at fair values. Under GAAP, such loans had been classified under "Loan and
advance investments". Loans to staff have now been presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078 Remarks

Loans to staff at cost (amounts Carrying amounts as

disbursed less repayments) S7412,734 90,127,987 per previous GAAP.

Fair value adjustment

Less: Fair Value Adjustment (12,821,376) (25,325,000) due to concessional rates

TOTAL 44,591,358 64,802,988

Fair Value adjustments of staff loans have been recognized as "Deferred Employee Expenditure" and presented under
"Other Assets" (Note 4.13)

EN-4: Investment Securities

Under GAAP, fixed term deposits with banks had been classified as "investments". Under NFRS, fixed term depsoits with
original maturity upto 3 months have been reclassified under "cash and cash equivalents" and those of longer maturity have
been classified under "Placement with banks and financial institutions".

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Investment securities as per GAAP 6,103,311,000 8,198,711,000
Less: Fixed term deposits with original maturity upto 3 months (3,202,000,000) (170,000,000)

(reclassified to cash and cash equivalents)

Less: Fixed term deposits with original maturity more than 3 months

(classified to placement with banks and financial institutions) (2,900,000,000) (8,027,400,000)

Investment securities as per NFRS 1,311,000 1,311,000
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EN-5: Current tax assets

Under GAAP; current tax liabilities were presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position and advance
payments of income tax were presented under "Other Assets". Under NFRS; advance payments of tax and current tax
liabilities have been netted-off and presented as net "Current tax assets" or "Current tax liabilities".

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Current tax liabilities (17,364,814) (44,689,374)
Current tax assets 120,618,057 216,381,977
Current tax assets/ (liabilities) 103,253,243 171,692,603

EN-6: Investment Properties

Under GAAP; non-banking assets; which are land and/or building previously held as collateral against loans and whose
ownership was assumed by the federation due to inability to realize the properties through auction for recovery of the
underlying loans; were presented under "Other Assets". Under NFRS; these properties have been reclassified to "Investment
Properties" and presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Non-banking assets as per GAAP 24,861,447 24,861,447
Investment properties as per NFRS (reclassified) 24,861,447 24,861,447

EN-7: Property, Plant and Equipment and Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Under GAAP; intangible assets and property, plant and equipment had been grouped under "Fixed Assets". They have now
been presented as separate line items in the statement of financial position.

Moreover, land owned by the federation have been measured at fair values at the date of transition. Such revaluation has led

to increase in the carrying amount of land by 68,271,152.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Fixed assets as per GAAP 131,066,197 142,623,649
Less: Intangible Assets (986,439) (1,396,869)
Property, plant and equipment as per GAAP 130,079,758 141,226,780
Add: Revaluation gain on land 68,271,152 68,271,152
Property, plant and equipment as per NFRS 198,350,910 209,497,932

EN-8: Deferred Tax Assets

Remeasurements of property, plant and equipment, defined benefit obligations, other long-term employee benefits have
resulted in differences in temporary differences measures as per GAAP and those measured as per NFRS. The resulting
differences in deferred taxes have been transferred to equity. Details are as follows:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as per GAAP 67,371 29,130
Effect of remeasurements on transition to NFRS (4,026,086) (4,026,086)
Less: Effects due to change in temporary differences for FY 2077-78

o - (252,571)
recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Less: Effects due to change in temporary differences for FY 2077-78

S S - (781,735)
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income.
Cumulative effect on transition to NFRS (4,026,086) (5,060,392)
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) as per NFRS (3,958,714) (5,031,262)

www.nefscun.org.np
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EN-9: Other assets

Various remeasurements and reclassifications upon transition to NFRS have resulted in differences in "Other Assets" as per

NFRS as compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars

1 Shrawan 2077

31 Ashadh 2078

Other Assets as per GAAP

157,315,505

269,757,722

Less: Advance payment of income tax reclassified (refer EN-5)

(120,618,057)

(216,381,977)

Less: Non-banking assets reclassified (refer EN-6)

(24,861,447)

(24,861,447)

Add: Prepaid expense related to staff loans (refer EN-3)

12,821,376

25,325,000

Other Assets as per NFRS

24,657,377

53,839,299

EN-10: Borrowings

Under GAAP, loan from National Youth Council had been grouped under "Current liabilities". The loan has now been

presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Borrowings as per GAAP - -
Add: Loan from National Youth Council 156,550,000 108,900,000
Borrowings as per NFRS 156,550,000 108,900,000

fits

Defined Benefit Obligations

Under GAAP, defined benefit obligations related to gratuity were measured at undiscounted amounts equal to the amount
of payments that had accrued as at the reporting date (i.e. the amounts that would have been payable had the employees

completed their employment as at the reporting date).

These obligations have been remeasured using Projected Unit Credit method as required by NAS 19- Employee Benefits and
the resulting differences have been charged against the retained earnings. Details are as follows:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Defined Benefit obligations as per GAAP 1,627,797 754,302
Effect of restatements as at the date of transition 14,859,403 14,859,403
Changes in expenses charged to profit or loss during FY 2077-78. - 2,397,350
Chz}nges in expenses charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income i (7.817,354)
during FY 2077-78. T
Defined Benefit obligations as per NFRS 16,487,200 10,193,700

Other Long-Term Employee Benefit Obligations

Under GAAP, other long-term employee benefit obligations related to home leave and sick leave were measured at
undiscounted amounts equal to the amount of payments that had accrued as at the reporting date (i.e. the amounts that would
have been payable had the employees completed their employment as at the reporting date).
These obligations have been remeasured using Projected Unit Credit method as required by NAS 19- Employee Benefits and
the resulting differences have been charged against the retained earnings. Details are as follows:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Other Long-term employee benefit obligations as per GAAP 19,165,108 24,035,872
Effect of restatements as at the date of transition 13,150,892 13,150,892
Changes in expenses charged to profit or loss during FY 2077-78. (4,923,064)
Defined Benefit obligations as per NFRS 32,316,000 32,263,700

Total Provision for Employee Benefits

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Total Provision for employee benefits as per GAAP 20,792,905 24,790,173
Effect of restatements as at the date of transition 28,010,295 28,010,295
Changes in expenses charged to profit or loss during FY 2077-78. - (2,525,714)
Changes in expenses charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income i (7.817,354)
during FY 2077-78. T
Total Provision for employee benefits as per NFRS 48,803,200 42,457,400

933 | 393¥ aftfes ARIRURTGTET Uedd aiitics Ufddgel 00T /00]

'BP Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

www.nefscun.org.np




EN-12: Deferred grant income

Under GAAP, unamortized portion of grant related to assets had been classified under "Current liabilities". This has now
been presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Deferred grant income 586,527 527,874

EN-13: Other Liabilities

Various remeasurements and reclassifications upon transition to NFRS have resulted in differences in "Other Assets" as per
NFRS as compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Current liabilities and provisions as per GAAP 230,427,643 224,809,533
Less: Borrowings reclassified (refer EN-10) (156,550,000) (108,900,000)
Less: Deferred grant income reclassified (refer EN-12) (586,527) (527,874)
Add: Provision for staff bonus reclassified. (refer EN-16) 15,757,812 17,548,646
Other Liabilities as per NFRS 89,048,927 132,930,305

EN-14: Revaluation Reserve

Land owned by the federation and classified as property, plant and equipment have been measured at fair values at the date
of transition. Such differences; together with related deferred taxes; have been transferred to revaluation reserve.

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Carrying amount of land as per GAAP 86,529,632 86,529,632
Fair value of land as per NFRS 154,800,784 154,800,784
Remeasurement differences 68,271,152 68,271,152
Deferred taxes on temporary differences due to above (6,827,115) (6,827,115)
Revaluation reserve as per NFRS 61,444,037 61,444,037

EN-15: Retained Earnings

Reconciliation between "retained earnings" as per GAAP and as per NFRS has been presented herewith:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078

Retained Earnings as per GAAP - -
Less: Remeasurement of provision for employee benefits (refer EN-11) (28,010,295) -
Effect of deferred tax on above 2,801,030 -
Cumulative effect on transition to NFRS - (25,209,265)
Change in total comprehensive income for FY 2077-78 - 9,250,109
Transfer to General Reserve (amortization of deferred income) 58,653
Retained Earnings as per NFRS (25,209,265) (15,900,503)

EN-16: Other Reserves and Funds

Reconciliation between "other reserves and funds" as per GAAP and as per NFRS has been presented herewith:

Particulars 1 Shrawan 2077 31 Ashadh 2078
Other Reserves as per GAAP 17,799,043 31,084,065
Less: Provision for staff bonus previously grouped under "other reserves

and funds" reclassified to "Other Liabilities" (15,757,812) (17,548,646)
Other Reserves as per NFRS 2,041,232 13,535,419
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Explanatory Notes Related to Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for FY 2077-78

EN-17: Interest Income

Under GAAP; loans to staff were measured at cost; the actual amounts disbursed less repayments. Under NFRS; these loans
have been measured at fair values. Accordingly, the amortized portions of such staff costs have been recognized as expenses

under "Personnel Expenses" with corresponding effect to interest income.

Particulars FY 2077-78

Interest income as per GAAP 1,602,420,179
Add: Additional Interest income on staff loans recognized at market rates. 1,215,810

Interest income as per NFRS 1,603,635,990

EN-18: Sales and Other Operating Income

Cost of stationery goods sold had been netted off against related income under GAAP. The expenses have now been

presented under a separate heading "Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses" under NFRS

Particulars FY 2077-78

Sales and other operating income as per GAAP 86,676,373
Add: Cost of stationery goods sold netted-off against income under GAAP 4,962,662
Less: Amortization of deferred income presented under separate heading (Note 4.32) (58,653)
Sales and other operating income as per NFRS 91,580,383

EN-19: Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses

Various remeasurements and reclassfication under NFRS have resulted in differences in "cost of goods sold and other

direct expenses" under NFRS as compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars FY 2077-78
Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses as per GAAP -
Add: Cost of stationery goods sold netted-off against income under GAAP (refer EN-18) 4,962,662
Add: Direct expenses related to income from various programmes classified under "Administrative and

. . 20,507,321
Operating expenses" under GAAP
Cost of Goods Sold and Other Direct Expenses as per NFRS 25,469,984

EN-20: Personnel Expenses

Various remeasurements and reclassfication under NFRS have resulted in differences in personnel expenses under NFRS as

compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars FY 2077-78
Personnel expenses as per GAAP 107,373,046
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation expenses and other long-term employee benefit expenses

(2,525,714)
(refer EN-11)
Staff expense related to amortization of fair value adjustment of staff loans at concessional rates of 1.215.810
interest T
Expenses related to training of staff classified under "administrative and operating expenses" as per

1,629,225

GAAP.
Staff bonus expense presented as a separate line item under GAAP 17,548,646
Personnel expenses as per NFRS 125,241,013

EN-21: Other Administrative and Operating Expenses

Various remeasurements and reclassfication under NFRS have resulted in differences in personnel expenses under NFRS as

compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars FY 2077-78
Other administrative and operating expenses as per GAAP 71,530,719
Less: Staff training expenses reclassified to "personnel expenses" (refer EN-20) (1,629,225)
Add: Direct expenses related to income from various programmes reclassified to "cost of goods sold and

: " (20,507,321)
other direct expenses
Other administrative and operating expenses as per NFRS 49,394,173
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EN-22: Deferred tax expense

Various remeasurements of temporary differences under NFRS have resulted in differences in deferred tax income under
NFRS as compared to GAAP. The details are as follows:

Particulars FY 2077-78
Deferred tax income/(expense) as per GAAP (38,241)
Less: Effects due to change in temporary differences for FY 2077-78 recognized in statement of profit or

(252,571)
loss. (refer EN-8)
Deferred tax income/(expense) as per NFRS (290,812)

EN-23: Other Comprehensive Income

Under NFRS; actuarial gain/loss on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations due to change in actuarial assumptions,
experience adjustments and others have been recognized in other comprehensive income.

Particulars FY 2077-78
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 7,817,354
Less: Effects on deferred tax due to change in temporary differences for FY 2077-78 recognized in (781,735)
statement of other comprehensive income. (refer EN-8) ’
Deferred tax income as per NFRS 7,035,619

Explanatory Notes Related to Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows for FY 2077-78

EN-24

The changes in net cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities is due to regrouping and
recalssification of items required under NFRS which are different as compared to the regulatory requirements as per GAAP.

EN-25

The changes in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period is due to regrouping and recalssification of fixed term
deposits of original maturity upto 3 months under "cash and cash equivalents" (refer EN-1)
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PEARLS Analysis
(Based on GAAP)

Indicator Particulars | Goal | Numerator | Denominator | Achievement

PROTECTION (P)
JReET

Allowance for Loan Losses /
Delinquency >12 months

92 AR a1 9 RET ATaT 100% %Ri%R9¥0 <%%Rq¥0 900,09,
FHOTHT B LR

P1

Net Allowance for Loan Losses /
Delinquency 1-12 months

P2 | g 2Ry 92 wfe wran s 35% RER%3¥R TURREERR 3.0%
FOTDH! IR Fa=e

Net Allowance for Good Loan /
p2* | Performing Loan 1% UESITERE | qUEVER0%5T] q.009
IS HOTPT DI LTl

EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (E)
YaTddNl fadiT JTdol

Net Loans/Total Assets

E1l 70-80% 9 't ¥ %
e o1 S SRR QURRER0YTR | RITIULOVURK %R.3%

Savings Deposits / Total Assets

E5 70-80% @ ¥ %
7w e S TR 953355%95R3 | RRILLOVYURT 59.9%

External Credit / Total Assets

E6 oo R4 . 00
- & TEET 4% | 1953000000 | IRLIUUO¥YRS 4.R%

Member Share Capital / Total
E7 | Assets q0-R0% | 9E90¥T¥Y00 | IRTIUYOWURE 8. ¥
¥R Yol S FERa

Net Institutional Capital/ Total
E9 Assets DI
0%

REIRI¥ILZ | RRTQLLO¥URY 91.9%%
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ASSETS QUALITY (A)

JUIRAR
Total Loan Delinquency / Gross
Loan Portfolio Yo% gl
AL | S o ey w1/ e - 1393UET] | UEO0RIOIERR 0.53%
Ja df@l FHo
Non-Earning Assets / Total Yo, ]
A2 | Assets ’ ¥SRYIRERT | RREIULOVHLE 2.9%%
THAST FERY ST FERT @A
RATES OF RETURN AND COSTS (R)
UlAeT qAT ST &3
Total Operating Expenses / Avg.
R9 | Total Assets 4% REIAVOLO | RIFYORYYERE 1.93%
Fo FodIeA @4/ 3iNd qERd
Net Income / Average Total
R12 Assets 0% YRRAGLIGY | RIELIRULRRK 9.29%
g I/ Sfwa F|Rl
LIQUIDITY (L)
qIcAdrn
S.T Investments + Liquid Assets
- S.T. Payables / Savings Depos-
its BIFTH
L1 BIel THIR] HHHTRS qu% 39RERENER | 153RE5T9ER3 R0.33%
R8I FHIAT g gohi(
Sl
Liquidity Reserves / Savings
L2 Deposits q0% 350YUEI¥00 | 953355%95R3 0.94%
RS B/ SHT o
Non-Earning Liquid Assets /
E Total Assets .
0 o) 0,009,
THASY T GGR | B 1% O] RIRJULO¥URY .00%
KRt
SIGN OF GROWTH (S)
g IDd
Growth in Membership L% ¥l
S10 304 ¥¥% 8. %%
GESR I =1 T
Growth in Total Assets garRwmfa
S11 . ¥R 0 ¥300% 0% A
o TR 9y 90 QR ¥R0RIRR | R¥3 ERAR %R
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- Quality assurance, supervision & monitoring
- Business intelligence & reporting

- HR, training & capacity management

- Business process management

- Compliance management

- Document management

- Fixed assets management
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Goals

Contributing to the SDGs

Achievements

NO
POVERTY

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

4

It is learnt that around five thousand financial cooperatives have worked in the areas of helping
tackle the issue of multi-dimensional poverty reduction pronouncing that their chief concern is
towards uplifting the socio economic and ecological evolvement of members as mentioned in
the by-law.

Latest research carried out by the NEFSCUN has shown that 3.5 million members of the
cooperatives got involved in generating revenue kick starting their own business ventures with
the financial aids from the credit cooperatives.

A large number of member cooperatives have run business development programs aiming to
uplift the marginalized members, where NEFSCUN developed e-commerce platform.

At least 60% member SACCOS of NEFSCUN have focused their attention towards healthy lives
and well-being of their members and even made procedures with stress on the longevity of
senior citizens.

Helped in achieving universal access to health care by maintaining financial risk protection,
quality essential health care and increasing availability of essential medicines and vaccines at
safe, effective, quality and reasonable prices.

A handful of financial cooperatives have started lending to electric vehicles at affordable interest
rates to curb carbon emission.

Likewise, a large number of credit cooperatives have run the program 'Say No to Plastic' in
ensuring climate consciousness.

QUALITY
EDUCATION

Assisted in ensuring equal access to all men and women to quality technical, vocational, and
university level education.

A handful of financial cooperatives have provided supports to help diligent students carry with
their academic journey.

Significant increase in the number of youths and adults acquiring relevant technical and
vocational skills for employment, decent work, and entrepreneurship.

GENDER
EQUALITY

Various campaigns have been launched by women cooperatives to eradicate child marriage,
early marriage, forced marriage and other deadly practices.

It is reported that several programs were launched to identify the value of unpaid and domestic
labor according to each country by promoting public service, infrastructure and social security
policy and shared responsibilities within the household.

Cooperative sector employs at least 43% women and has developed a large chunk of women
leadership by 33%.

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

Participation in Social Security Fund and implement provisions of the Labour Act in cooperatives.
80% members participation in the Annual General Assembly.
At least 40% members of NEFSCUN affiliates in the Quality Assurance and Supervision program.

16 PEAGE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS
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30% of the members of NEFSCUN joined the risk-monitoring program and practiced good
governance.

60% of the members included in the quality assurance program through Rapid Risk Auditing
System.

Guidelines of good governance audit system were updated and auditing practice conducted
among the members.

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

Likewise, NEFSCUN has forged strategic alliance with various international and national non-
government organizations and even line ministry and the department in carrying out specific
activities in meeting the development goals set by the UN as the 17 goals have become most
important concern for all the responsible bodies.
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